REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

ITS / Management, Operations, Integration and Maintenance ITS / Tunnel Operations

Proposals Due

August 31, 2016 4:30 p.m. ET

PROJECT SCHEDULE

RFP Posted on Division of Professional Services Website Consultants' Proposals Due First Selection Committee Meeting Final Selection Committee Meeting August 9, 2016 August 31, 2016 September 6, 2016 September 21, 2016

Mr. Eric Pelfrey, P.E., Director Division of Professional Services Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 200 Mero Street, 3rd Floor Frankfort, Kentucky 40622 E-Mail: Eric.Pelfrey@ky.gov

Summary

This procurement is for:

- The management and operation of the TRIMARC facility/system and related infrastructure, as well as, the system integration involving equipment and software.
- Maintenance and support of statewide ITS assets.
- Operation of the East End Crossing Tunnel.

More specific information is contained herein. Consultants are hereby advised that the successful firm shall be expected to be working with other consultants, electrical contractors, roadway construction contractors, other system integrators, communications providers, etc., in performing work under this Contract. Consultants are expected to perform work on the following Tasks.

- 1. Direction, Supervision, and Administration
- 2. System Engineering and Operation
- 3. Equipment Maintenance
- 4. Freeway Service Patrols
- 5. Special Engineering Projects
- 6. Utility Management
- 7. Emergency Repairs
- 8. Tunnel Operation

Consultants shall be pre-qualified in accordance with Section 10.610 of this RFP.

The Kentucky Transportation Cabinet (hereinafter called the "Cabinet" and/or the "KYTC" and /or the "Cabinet") has determined that its mission will be best served by a Manager to provide these services. The Cabinet issues this Request for Proposal (RFP) under the authority of KRS 45A.

"MANAGER" is defined as the Consultant(s) that is pre-qualified with the KYTC as outlined in Section 10.610, responds to this RFP, is selected and signs a Contract with the Cabinet to provide management services for the Statewide ITS Support Activity.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1	0 – ADMINISTRATIVE OVERVIEW	8
10.000	Purpose of Request for Proposal	8
10.010	Commitment of Cabinet	8
10.020	Request for Proposal Availability in Electronic Format	8
10.030	Language Usage in the Request for Proposal	8
10.040	Transition Period	8
10.100	Organization of the Request for Proposal	9
10.200	Definitions	9
10.300	Contacts	12
10.400	Written Questions	12
10.500	On-Site Visit	13
10.600	Laws and Regulations	14
10.610	Pre-Qualification of Consultants	14
10.700	Special Requirements	15
10.710	Procurements and Future Contract Modifications	15
10.720	Acquisition of Manager and/or Subcontractor(s)	16
10.730	Equipment Mark-up Percentage	16
10.740	Innovative Approaches for Engaging DBE Firms,	
	Minority-Owned Businesses, Small Businesses,	
	and Recognized Minority Organizations	17
SECTION 2	0 – SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS	18
20.000	Facility Overview	18
20.100	Scope of Work	18
20.200	Responsibility of the Selected Manager	19
20.210	General Responsibilities	19
20.220	Personnel Responsibilities	21
20.230	Equipment and Materials Responsibilities	21
20.240	Emergency Response Responsibilities	22
20.300	Responsibility of the State	22
20.400	ė į	23
SECTION 3	0 – OPERATING SYSTEMS	24
30.000	System Overview	24
30.100	Roadway Sensor System	24
30.200	Closed-Circuit Television System (CCTV)	24
30.300	Dynamic/Variable Message Signs (DMS/VMS)	24

	30.500	TRIMARC Software	24
	30.600	CARS/CARS-511 Traveler Information System	26
	30.700	Freeway Service Patrol Monitoring	26
	30.800	TRIMARC Building Security System	27
	30.900	Highway Advisory Radio (HAR) System	27
	31.100	Power Supply System	27
SEC	CTION 40	0 – MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS	28
	40.000	Maintenance Overview	28
	40.010	Use of Premises	28
	40.020	Housekeeping, Buildings, Grounds, and Parking Lots	28
	40.100	Contracted Maintenance	28
SEC	CTION 50	0 – SERVICES	29
	50.000	General	29
	50.100	Operations	29
	50.200	Freeway Service Patrols	34
	50.300	Special Systems Engineering Projects	39
	50.400	Utility Management	41
	50.500	Emergency Repairs	42
	50.600	Incident Management	42
	50.700	Community Involvement	42
SEC	CTION 60	0 – TERMS AND CONDITIONS	42
	60.000	General	42
	60.010	Term of Contract	43
	60.020	Deviations from Contract	43
	60.030	Entire Agreement	43
	60.040	Notice to Proceed	43
	60.050	Advertising Award	44
	60.060	Notices	44
	60.070	Titles and Numbering of Sections and Subsections	44
	60.100	Performance Bond	44
	60.200	Termination of Contract	44
	60.210	Termination for Default	45
	60.220	Termination for Manager Bankruptcy	45
	60.230	Termination for Convenience	45
	60.240	Termination for Unavailability of Funds	
		and/or Spending Authority	46
	60.250	Termination for Failure to Comply with	
		Confidentiality Provisions	46
	60.260	Notice of Termination	46

60.270	Procedure on Termination	46
60.280	Termination Claims	47
60.300	Changes in Scope	48
60.400	Force Majeure	48
60.500	Disputes	48
60.600	Confidentiality	48
60.610	Confidentiality of Contract Terms	49
60.700	Personnel	49
60.710	Independent Manager	50
60.720	Manager Cooperation in Related Efforts	50
60.800	Employment Practices	50
60.810	Conflicts of Interest	51
60.900	Conformance with State and Federal Laws	51
61.000	Permits, Licenses, Taxes, and State Registration	51
61.100	Rights and Remedies	52
61.200	Waiver	52
61.300	Assurances Before the Breach	52
61.400	Insurance	52
61.500	Prime Manager Responsibility, Subcontractors	54
61.510	Affiliation	54
61.600	Assignment	55
61.700	Hold Harmless	55
61.710	Patent or Copyright Infringement	55
61.720	Notice of Infringement	56
61.730	Guarantee of Authority	56
61.740	Settlement of Claim	56
61.800	Auditing, Accounting Availability, and	
	Access to Sites and Documents	57
61.900	Warranty	58
62.000	Property of Kentucky	58
62.100	Warranty Against Broker's Fee	58
62.200	Attorney's Fees	58
62.300	Offer of Gratuities	58
62.400	Contract Variations	59
62.500	Operations Review	59
62.510	Emergency Closing of Facility	59
62.520	Suspension of Operations	59
62.530	Suspension of Payments	59
62.600	Reporting of Incidents in the Facility	60
62.700	Utility Payment	60
62.800	Payment Schedule	60
	•	

SECTION 70 - PROCUREMENT

70.000	Approach	60
70.100	Process	60
70.200	Rules of Procurement	61
70.201	Campaign Finance Law Statement Pursuant to	
	KRS 45A.110 and KRS 45A.115	61
70.202	Reminder to Former State Employees	61
70.203	Executive Branch Code of Ethics	61
70.210	No Contingent Fees	61
70.300	Restrictions on Communication with Commonwealth Staff	61
70.400	Request for Proposal Addenda	62
70.500	Proposal Preparation	62
70.510	Cost of Preparing Proposal	62
70.520	Disposition of Proposals	62
70.530	Consultant Response and Proprietary Information	62
70.540	Proposal Addenda and Rules for Withdrawal	63
70.550	Proposal Submission Requirements	63
70.600	Acceptance of Proposals	65
70.700	Protests	65
70.800	Equal Employment Opportunity Act	66
70.900	Manager Reports of Prior Violations of KRS	
	Chapters 136, 139, 141, 337, 338, 341, and 342	66
SECTION 80) – PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS	67
80.000	Introduction	67
80.100	Proposal Contents	67
80.110	Title Page	67
80.120	Table of Contents	67
80.130	Transmittal Letter	67
80.140	Executive Summary	68
80.150	Technical Experience/Capacity	69
80.151	Corporate Background	69
80.152	Corporate Experience and Related Projects	69
80.154	Proposed Project Staff	70
80.155	Subcontractor Background and Experience	71
80.160	Business Resource Capacity	71
80.170	Business Approach	72
80.180	Management and Operations Plan	72
80.200	Cost Proposal	73
80.300	Summary of Proposal Material From Other Sections	73
SECTION 90) – EVALUATION PROCESS	73
90.000	Evaluation Process	73

90.100	Evaluation of Each Proposal	74
90.110	Evaluation of Mandatory Requirements	74
90.120	Evaluation Organization	74
90.200	Evaluation Criteria	74
90.201	Evaluation Details	75
90.202	Project/Key Personnel	76
90.203	Startup Schedule	76
90.204	Management and Operations Plan	76
90.205	Corporate Administrative	76
90.210	Individual Committee Member's Score for Each Proposal	76
90.300	Interview Process	76
90.400	Final Selection Process	77
90.500	Selection Committee Members	77

SECTION 10 – ADMINISTRATIVE OVERVIEW

10.000 PURPOSE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

The purpose of this Request for Proposal (RFP) is to solicit proposals from qualified Consultants to manage and operate the TRIMARC facility and associated traffic management systems for the Jefferson County. This will require the operation of the East End Crossing Tunnel (EECT). Additionally, system integration, equipment, contract administration, future procurement/installation of equipment, implementation supervision, preventive maintenance, repairs, etc., for the statewide ITS system are to be provided.

10.010 <u>Commitment of the State</u>

The issuance of this Request for Proposal (RFP) constitutes neither a commitment by the state to award a contract nor a commitment to pay any costs incurred in the preparation of a response to this Request for Proposal. Costs of proposal preparation are not reimbursable, even for the selected Manager.

10.020 Request for Proposal Availability in Electronic Format

The Request for Proposal is available in an electronic format (Adobe PDF). A Consultant or Consultant's representative who desires this information in electronic format shall email:

Mr. Eric Pelfrey, P.E., Director Division of Professional Services Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 200 Mero Street, 3rd Floor Frankfort, Kentucky 40622 E-Mail: <u>Eric.Pelfrey@ky.gov</u>

10.030 Language Usage in the Request for Proposal

When the language used in the Request for proposal is singular or plural but the other is more appropriate, Consultants shall consider that the correct term has been used. When the same word in the Request for Proposal is capitalized or is in lower case but the other usage is the more appropriate, Consultants shall consider that the correct usage has been provided.

10.040 Transition Period

The Manager may be required to provide a transition period of up to 120 days from the Notice to Proceed. This transition period is to allow the Manager's work force time to receive training and certification for the required skills needed to manage and operate the

TRIMARC facility and maintain the statewide ITS system. This transition period is to also allow the Manager's work force time to acquire the necessary on-the-job skills. The cost of the transition period will be borne by the Manager.

10.100 Organization of the Request for Proposal

This Request for Proposal is organized into nine sections. These are described below:

- 1. Section 10 Administrative Overview Provides Consultants with general information on the objectives of this RFP and the procurement process.
- 2. Section 20 System Requirements Provides Consultants with a description of the system to be managed, including staffing, equipment, and reports required.
- 3. Section 30 Operating Systems Provides Consultants with descriptions of the various systems over which the services shall be managed and operated.
- 4. Section 40 Maintenance Requirements Provides Consultants with descriptions of additional maintenance requirements.
- 5. Section 50 Services Describes response services and regulations to be provided by the Manager.
- 6. Section 60 Terms and Conditions Provides Consultants with the terms and conditions under which the service shall be maintained.
- 7. Section 70 Procurement Provides Consultants with requirements and schedules for the procurement.
- 8. Section 80 Proposal Requirements Prescribes the format and content required for each proposal.
- 9. Section 90 Evaluation Process Describes how proposals will be evaluated by the Cabinet.

10.200 Definitions

- 1. "ADA" means the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. 12101, et seq.
- 2. "c/o/b" means close of business at 4:30 p.m. Eastern Daylight Time.
- 3. "State" means the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet.
- 4. "KYTC" and "Cabinet" means the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet located at 200 Mero Street, Frankfort, Kentucky 40622.

- 5. "FHWA" means the Federal Highway Administration, a unit of the United States Department of Transportation.
- 6. "In writing" when referring to the method of communication shall also include e-mail.
- 7. "Request for Proposal" and "RFP" mean a document describing the work desired by the Cabinet.
- 8. "RSVP" means to respond if you please.
- 9. "CFR" means Code of Federal Regulations.
- 10. "KAR" means the Kentucky Administrative Regulations.
- 11. "KRS" means the Kentucky Revised Statutes.
- 12. "TRIMARC" means <u>Traffic Response and Incident Management Assisting the River Cities</u>. The TRIMARC facility is located at 901 West Main Street, Louisville, Kentucky 40202. TRIMARC may refer to the "facility" or the "system" or both. TRIMARC is an on-going activity of KYTC.
- 13. "Activity" when referring to or with TRIMARC means the on-going pursuit or work of traffic and incident management.
- 14. "Facility" or "Control Center" means the TRIMARC physical facility located at 901 West Main Street in Louisville, Kentucky and environs as described in Section 40.
- 15. "Consultant" or "Vendor" or "Firm" means the firm or combination of firms responding to the Request for Proposal. "Manager" refers to the Vendor engaged by the Cabinet to provide management services for this Request for Proposal.
- 16. "System" means any or all of the various coordinated or individual mechanical, electrical, or electronic systems/equipment at the facility or in the field and generally described in Section 30
- 17. "Operations" means all actions necessary for the proper functioning of a system.
- 18. "Response Maintenance" means actions performed on an as-needed basis. Upon detection or notification, a timely dispatch of repair person/team to secure the site; diagnose the problem; perform the repairs; and record the activities is required.
- 19. "Preventive Maintenance" means actions performed on a regularly scheduled basis using a set of procedures to preserve the system.
- 20. "Management" means the allocation of resources for the proper functioning of the system.

- 21. "Design Modifications" means actions invoked to correct a recurring problem; to accommodate changes in conditions; or to update the system to current standards.
- 22. "Response Service" means the actions performed on an as-needed basis. Upon detection or notification, an immediate dispatch of the appropriate emergency team to secure the site; diagnose the problem; perform the emergency service; clear the site; and record the activities is required.
- 23. "Advisory Committee" means the committee created through an interstate agreement responsible for the development, management and operations of TRIMARC.
- 24. "Responsive Consultant" means the Consultant who offers or responses in the prescribed form and who responds on time with a complete proposal as indicated in Sections 70 and 80 to perform the work described in the Request for Proposal.
- 25. "Notice to Proceed" means written notice to the Manager to proceed with the contract work.
- 26. "Due Diligence" means a measure of prudence or activity, as is properly to be expected from, and ordinarily exercised by, a reasonable and prudent person under the particular circumstances. It is to be measured by the relevant facts of each case.
- 27. "EECT" East End Crossing Tunnel is the tunnel located on I-265 in Jefferson County.
- 28. "TOC" is KYTC's statewide Operation Center located at 200 Mero St. Frankfort, KY.

10.300 Contacts

1. This Request for proposal is being issued by the:

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet Division of Professional Services 200 Mero Street, 3rd Floor Frankfort, Kentucky 40622

2. Information regarding the procurement procedures shall be made in writing to:

Mr. Eric Pelfrey, P.E., Director Division of Professional Services Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 200 Mero Street, 3rd Floor Frankfort, Kentucky 40622 E-Mail: Eric.Pelfrey@ky.gov All programmatic and technical inquiries in regard to this solicitation, with the
exception of questions regarding procurement procedures as described above, shall be
made in writing to:

Tina Swansegar Division of Maintenance Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 200 Mero Street, 3rd Floor Frankfort, Kentucky 40622 Email: tina.swansegar@ky.gov

- 4. Except for the Questions described in Section 10.400, no contacts should be made to KYTC or FHWA regarding any additional details of this request for proposal or the current management and operations of TRIMARC. Telephone calls shall be accepted only by Mr. Pelfrey.
- 5. Except for the Transition Period (Section 10.040), work is expected to begin on this contract by November 1, 2016.

10.400 Written Questions

- 1. Consultants are encouraged to submit written questions to Mr. Pelfrey no later than close of business three (3) Cabinet working days prior to the deadline for Proposal submittal. No answer, clarification, etc., will be posted on the Division of Professional Services Website after close of business on Friday, August 26, 2016.
- 2. A Consultant or its representative who has a disability for which the Cabinet needs to make an accommodation shall notify Mrs. Swansegar of the need when communicating the RSVP.
- 3. The Cabinet shall prepare written responses to questions and shall submit them as an addendum to the RFP pursuant to Section 70.400, to all Consultants within three working days.

10.500 On-Site Visit

Consultants are urged and expected to inspect the TRIMARC facility and to satisfy themselves of all general and local conditions that may affect the performance of the contract, to the extent such information is reasonably obtainable. Failure by the Consultants to inspect the site shall not constitute grounds for a claim after award of contract. The on-site inspection will be conducted by the Cabinet. This inspection will be the <u>only</u> visit allowed Consultants during the Request for Proposal period. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to prohibit the on-going activities of the current Manager.

10.600 Laws and Regulations

Consultants are responsible for obtaining, reading, and complying with the laws and regulations cited in this Request for Proposal. This Request for Proposal may not necessarily cite all the laws and regulations that the Manager, once selected, may be responsible for following.

10.610 Pre-Qualification of Consultants

Consultants shall be pre-qualified with the Cabinet's Division of Professional Services in the following areas:

ITS System Integrator
ITS Management and Operations
ITS Communications Planning and Development
ITS System Deployment
ITS Technology/Systems Evaluation

The Consultant is to obtain and maintain National Incident Management Systems (NIMS) certification for employees, except for administrative and non-field support employees, who will be working on this Contract. Certification is obtained by completing several online training courses that typically take less than two hours each to complete. Manager team personnel required to complete this training should have sufficient time to complete same prior to signing a Contract for services. Detailed information on the course requirements and certification process can be obtained by referring to www.fema.gov/national-incident-management-system

The Manager shall be an employee of the Prime Contractor. The Manager is not required to be a Licensed Professional Engineer, but shall have at least one (1) Professional Engineer Licensed to practice Engineering in Kentucky on the Project Team, and experienced in the activities associated with the planning, development, management, and operations of related advanced transportation technologies who maintains the appropriate technology awareness and proficiency on a daily basis.

The Manager or a Sub-Contractor on its Team must be licensed by the Kentucky Fire Marshall's Office. Preferably, a copy of the Electrical Licenses(s) is to be placed in the Proposal. The period of time to acquire an Electrical License(s) can be lengthy. Proposals that contain a copy of the Electrical License(s) application will be accepted, however, the Contract will not be executed until the Electrical License(s) is obtained. Electrical License documentation can be included with the resumes and financial data prescribed in Section 70.550 (Proposal Submission Requirements).

10.700 Special Requirements

Consultants should pay close attention to the provisions in Section 10.700 through Section 10.800.

This Contract shall be effective on the date that a Notice to Proceed is issued. It shall be in effect initially until June 30, 2018. There shall be the option for renewals (Section 60.010). The Cabinet may decline a renewal option without explanation to the incumbent Manager. Likewise, the Manager may decline a renewal option without explanation to the Cabinet (Section 60.200).

10.710 Procurements and Future Contract Modifications

Contract Modifications may occur for various reasons, namely:

- Add Funds and/or Work Task Orders to the contract
- Add options for renewal
- Extend milestone dates
- React to changing conditions
- Modify "Up-set" limit

The list is not inclusive. Procurement of equipment and/or services by the Manager may be through use of (1) Company price contracts, (2) Request for Proposals from vendors and/or (3) by Manager Personnel (e.g. software). Vendor requests may be prepared by the Manger prior to Contract Modification approval. Issuance of RFP's, in-house software preparation or any activity not specifically covered by the Contract is not to begin until Contract Modification approval(s).

Procurements may allow a partial payment of fifty percent (50%) of equipment costs upon delivery. Consultants are warned that they must be prepared to handle a significant upfront cost and financial capacity in the procurement of hardware.

10.720 Acquisition of Manager and/or Sub-Contractor(s)

Acquisition of the Manager and/or a Sub-contractor by another firm during the life of the Contract does not automatically open up the Contract to re-negotiation. Any change in cost, terms and/or conditions would have to be determined by the Cabinet to be in the Cabinet's benefit. The nature of the acquisition, whether voluntary or involuntary, will have no effect on this provision. Any insistence by an acquiring firm or holding company to increase the upset limit of the Contract is grounds for Termination by Default (Section 60.210).

The Cabinet is to be notified within ten (10) working days of any proposed or completed acquisition. Also, the Cabinet is to be provided with a listing of company affiliations owned by either the acquiring entity, and/or owned by the Manager. This listing is to be kept current. Failure to comply with this requirement can be grounds for Termination by Default (Section 60.210).

10.730 Equipment Mark-Up Percentages

The Manager from time to time may repair existing equipment or replace with equipment that has been repaired. Reimbursement of out-of-pocket costs will be made without mark-up. However, new equipment procured by the Manager or a Sub-Contractor is allowed one mark-up percentage to cover procurement costs and profit. The Manager may share a portion of the mark-up written below with a Sub-Contractor as long as there is no mark-up on another mark-up. The Cabinet has placed a limit of twenty percent (20%) on the mark-up for this project. A proposed higher percentage could result in rejection of the response. The Mark-up shall be allowed for any sales, use, or personal property taxes on such equipment. However, cost of Purchase Orders, receiving, administration, etc, will be reimbursed as a direct cost.

This percentage also provides one of the factors in "short-listing" for the second part of the selection process (Section 90.200). Consultants are to write-in their proposed mark-up percentage in both numbers and words in their Proposal. Failure to do so will result in *prima facie* evidence of a ZERO mark-up.

Mark-up Percentage	Points	S
>20%	0	
20%	0	
19%	0.5	
18%	1.0	
17%	1.5	
16%	2.0	
15%	2.5	
14%	3.0	
13%	3.5	
12%	4.0	
11%	4.5	
10%	5.0	
9%	5.5	
8%	6.0	
7%	6.5	
6%	7.0	
5%	7.5	
4%	8.0	
3%	8.5	
2%	9.0	
1%	9.5	
0%	10.0	Maximum Points Possible

10.740 <u>Innovative Approaches for Engaging DBE Firms, Minority-Owned Businesses, Small Businesses, and Recognized Minority Organizations</u>

DBE goals and objectives have not been established of this Contract. The objective of this factor is to assess the creativity and ingenuity of the Consultant Team in developing ideas or strategies that will help level the playing field for DBE firms, minority-owned businesses,

small businesses and recognized minority organizations. The concepts should explain how the Consultant Team will engage DBE firms, minority-owned businesses, small businesses and recognized minority organizations through race and gender neutral outreach, education, training, technical assistance and other supportive services. The focus of these concepts should be to increase the number and capacity of underutilized DBE firms, minority-owned businesses, small businesses, and recognized minority organizations in order to take advantage of contracting opportunities available through this Contract. The Proposal should not commit to the establishment of goals or percentage levels for participation of DBE firms or other small businesses. Except to the extent that the KYTC establishes a DBE goal for this Contract, all measures will have to be race and gender neutral, as the term is used in 49 CFR 26.

The Consultant's Proposal will contain a "DBE Firms and other Small Business Participation Plan" as part of the scope of work for this Contract. In addition to DBE firms, minority-owned businesses, small businesses and other recognized minority organizations that provide Engineering and/or System Integration services, the Plan should also describe how other DBE firms, minority-owned businesses, small businesses and other recognized minority organizations would be utilized. This Plan will be subject to the concurrence of the KYTC's Office for Business and Occupational Development. Except to the extent that the KYTC establishes a DBE goal for this Contract, all measures used will have to be race and gender neutral, as the term is used in 49 CFR 26.

There is not a specific DBE goal or a required percentage for participation. Consultant teams are expected to make good faith efforts in accordance with 49 CFR 26 to encourage the participation of DBE firms, minority-owned businesses small businesses and other recognized minority organizations based on needed services, qualifications and availability. (NOTE: This is not intended to be exclusionary in consideration for the use of any DBE firm, minority-owned business or small business as a sub-consultant for this Contract).

Small and minority-owned businesses are not required to be certified as DBE's in order to participate in this Contract. The utilization of small, minority-owned, and DBE businesses will be tracked and reported.

The above Plan is to be placed in a separate binder that is clearly identified on the outside and confirms to the criteria stated under Section 80.000. Consultants should include a brief discussion of their "DBE Firms and Other Small Business Participation Plan" in the Executive Summary. This brief discussion will count against the 50 page Proposal limit. Due to a concurrent review of this Plan by both the KYTC's Office for Business and Occupational Development, and the Selection Committee, Consultants should provide an original and 10 copies of the Plan.

Consultants will receive a maximum of ten (10) points for this item (Section 90.200).

SECTION 20 - SYSTEM REQUIREMENTS

20.000 FACILITY OVERVIEW

The Commonwealth of Kentucky owns the building housing the TRIMARC facility at 901 West Main Street in Louisville. The building maintenance, including its heating, ventilation and air conditioning, are the responsibility of the Cabinet. TRIMARC and the traffic management system were constructed using Federal-aid funds. The States of Kentucky and Indiana agreed to build, operate, and maintain TRIMARC as evidenced by execution of Federal-aid Agreement Documents. Indiana no longer participates in TRIMARC and all ITS assets are in the state of Kentucky.

This Request for Proposal is intended to solicit proposals for the management and operation of the TRIMARC activity, associated system integration and maintenance of statewide ITS assets. A list of current ITS assets are shown in Appendix A.

20.100 Scope of Work

This Scope of Work defines the tasks to be performed under the Contract by the selected Manager for the operation of the TRIMARC facility and systems, operation of the EECT and maintenance of statewide ITS assets. The coverage area for the system currently encompasses all of Kentucky. The TRIMARC Control Center operates 24 hours a day/7 days a week. Managers should base their submissions on continuing this operation of the System.

All operations of TRIMARC currently originate from 901 West Main Street, Louisville, Kentucky. The services to be provided by the Manager are defined by the following tasks:

- 1. Direction, Supervision, and Administration
- 2. System Engineering and Operation
- 3. Equipment Maintenance
- 4. System Integration
- 5. Freeway Service Patrols
- 6. Special Engineering Projects
- 7. Utility Management
- 8. Emergency Accident Repairs
- 9. Tunnel Monitoring

20.200 Responsibility of the Selected Manager

20.210 General Responsibilities

 The Manager shall have general responsibility for management and operation of the TRIMARC Activity and maintenance of all statewide ITS assets. These responsibilities include "Operations", "Response Maintenance", "Preventive Maintenance", "Design Modification", and "Management". This includes, but is not limited to, performance of all maintenance required for the mechanical, electrical, and electronic features of TRIMARC; replacement of all materials and equipment as its useful life is expended; maintaining a qualified on-site emergency response unit; keeping up the general cleanliness of the facility.

- 2. TRIMARC system operators, tunnel operators, their supervisor, the Systems Administrator, and other support staff shall occupy office space at 901 West Main Street, Louisville, Kentucky. The Cabinet may consider relocation of some or all of the operations within the Metro Louisville Region during the course of this Contract. The Manager shall place all Control Center and field equipment utilities under the responsibility of the Manager and shall be responsible for prompt payment of all associated costs (Reimbursable Items). The Manager will not be reimbursed for late charges for overdue utility payments unless it can clearly show that the Cabinet was responsible for the late charges.
- 3. The Manager shall maintain all features within the limits of the TRIMARC facility property and all systems described in Section 30 of this Request for Proposal. The building maintenance including its heating, ventilation and air conditioning are the responsibility of the Cabinet. The grounds surrounding 901 West Main Street are also the responsibility of the Cabinet. The Manager will exercise due diligence in the use of the facility and the grounds.
- 4. The Cabinet will provide all items comprising the TRIMARC system at no cost to the Manager. These items will include space on the Operations Floor and sufficient additional office space to run the Operations; ATMS/ATIS hardware and software; communications; and adequate parking. The ATMS/ATIS software is licensed to the Cabinet. The Manager shall be prepared to use this software at the start of the Contract. Section 10.040 may be required if the Manager is not prepared.
- 5. System hardware and software changes may be implemented by others during the term of this effort. The changes are not expected to adversely impact the work of the operator of the TRIMARC system. The role of the Manager in software integration and maintenance may range from cooperation to purchasing hardware and/or software to support TRIMARC operations and statewide ITS assets.
- 6. This arrangement requires a close working relationship between Manager and State personnel. The Manager and State, working together, will upgrade system configurations, refine policies for the operation of the system, ensure that the system is being properly maintained, and keep inventory records of TRIMARC equipment. State personnel will provide guidance to the Manager's administrative staff as required regarding the accomplishment of these tasks.
- 7. To carry out the mission of TRIMARC and maintenance of statewide ITS assets, the Manager and staff shall be required to cooperate and communicate with several outside agencies and firms, including the Metro Louisville Police and other police agencies responsible for patrolling the region's roadways, firms engaged in gathering and disseminating traffic information, such as Metro Traffic, Total Traffic, various TV and

- radio stations, neighboring States and contractors engaged by the State to provide various services.
- 8. The Manager shall setup and maintain an inventory of the all Cabinets of the ITS assets. The inventory shall contain a description of each asset including the specific identification characteristics of each asset, the cost of the asset and the estimated useful life
- 9. The Manager shall setup and maintain a system of administrative and fiscal controls such that the facility may be managed and operated in an efficient manner. Such controls will allow the tracking of administrative and fiscal operations for the annual audit.
- 10. The Manager shall setup and maintain plans for Operations, Management, Response Maintenance, Design Modifications, and Response Services. These plans shall be submitted by the Manager within 45 days of the Notice to Begin Work.

20.220 Personnel Responsibilities

- 1. The Manager shall designate one person as the TRIMARC Project Manager. This person shall be normally located at the site in a full time capacity. The TRIMARC Project Manager or a designated representative shall be available 24 hours a day. The TRIMARC Project Manager shall serve as a one-point contact between the Cabinet and the Manager in matters involving day-to-day operations, including EECT operations and statewide ITS assets.
- 2. Prior to the finalization of a contract, the Manager shall submit to the Cabinet the qualifications of all employees to be located at the TRIMARC facility. These employees include: the direct labor employees of the Manager and any sub-contract staff proposed by the Manager.
- 3. The Manager shall cause any other support staff such as programmers, engineers, and other experts to be provided, with costs for their office space included in the Manager's overhead.
- 4. The Manager shall ensure that minimum fair labor standard practices are met.

20.230 Equipment and Materials Responsibilities

1. The Manager shall be responsible for maintaining a sufficient inventory of spare parts and equipment to ensure minimum delays in repairs or maintenance. The current contract for the TRIMARC facility includes the provision of spare parts. These items shall be turned over to the Manager for use in operating and maintaining the facility. These parts shall be stored at the existing maintenance facility located within the boundaries of the facility. The provided items shall be replaced as part of the Manager's contract, with a payment schedule as described in Section 62.800.

- 2. The Manager shall provide any needed vehicles, including bucket trucks, in the performance of this Contract. This responsibility shall be covered by the Manager's fee. The Manager may on occasion be able to coordinate with Highway District 5 for the use of equipment, but the Manager should not depend upon this possibility.
- The Manager shall provide security for the items in the contract which are located at the TRIMARC facility, and shall make best-efforts to provide security for field devices and items.
- 4. The Manager shall develop a preventive maintenance plan for TRIMARC and all stateside ITS assets. This plan shall be submitted within 45 days of the Notice to Begin Work to the Cabinet for approval.

20.240 Emergency Response Responsibilities

- 1. The Manager shall be given necessary jurisdiction to perform emergency response efforts as needed. The Manager should secure agreements with local emergency management authorities, counties, states, or other entries required to obtain assistance in emergency response.
- 2. All emergency response personnel, including at a minimum the TRIMARC Freeway Service Patrol Operators, shall be trained in the following areas:
 - a. Hazard Communication Right to Know (29CFR 1910.1200)
 - b. Personal Protective Equipment (29CFR 1910.132)
 - c. Blood Borne Pathogens (29 CFR 1910.1030)
 - d. Fire Extinguishers and Hazardous Materials (29 CFR 1910.157 and 29 CFR 1910.106)
 - e. Traffic Control Highway Safety
 - f. First Aid/CPR
 - g. Highway Crash Site Management
 - h. Basic Hazard Awareness
- 3. The Manager shall provide the required continuing education and re-certification training for the above listed programs as required at no cost to the employee. The employees shall not be required to undergo training on their time or expense as a condition of employment.
- 4. The Response Service Plan shall outline a course of action and designate the personnel, equipment, and materials expected to be used in confronting incidents resulting from traffic accidents, systems failures, hazardous materials exposure, medical emergencies, and natural causes.
- 5. As part of the Response Service Plan, the Manager shall develop traffic control plans for the TRIMARC facility and surrounds, including the EECT. The traffic control plans will list typical sketches of the traffic control devices and personnel in the event

of a lane closure in either lane, closure of an entire roadway, or total TRIMARC closure. The plans shall also be used for traffic control necessary for maintenance operations. The traffic control plans shall follow the guidelines of the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices and be supported by the Traffic Surveillance Control System.

20.300 Responsibility of the State

- 1. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Request for Proposal, and upon execution of a written contract, the Cabinet shall grant the Manager the privilege to use space at the TRIMARC Facility to operate and maintain the TRIMARC Activity.
- 2. The Cabinet will provide all items comprising the TRIMARC system at no cost to the Manager. These items will include space on the Operations Floor and sufficient additional office space to run the Operations; ATMS/ATIS hardware and software; communications; and adequate parking.
- 3. The Cabinet shall have full access to the TRIMARC facility and any off-site storage and maintenance site.
- 4. The contract for the TRIMARC facility includes the provision of items to be used by the States for purpose of maintaining the roadway approaches, such as guardrail and lighting standards. The States shall replace these items as they are used.
- 5. The Cabinet shall evaluate the Manager's emergency response performance based upon reviews of written and video records, independent post-incident interviews, and traffic data.
- 6. The Cabinet shall periodically inspect the TRIMARC facility for compliance with applicable state and federal statutes and regulations and to insure proper execution of the contract.
- 7. The Cabinet will maintain the EECT and associated assets, systems and communications. Only ITS assets associated with the EECT will be the maintained by the Manager.

20.400 Reports

The Manager shall furnish to the Cabinet, the reports described below.

1. Annual Activity Report: The Manager shall furnish an original annual report, attested by an officer or the Manager. This report shall be provided to the Cabinet within thirty days of the end of the Cabinet's fiscal year (July 1 to June 30). This report shall contain a list of personnel changes, equipment changes, maintenance activities, and emergency response activities for the previous fiscal year, as well as any additional information that may be reasonably required by KYTC.

- 2. Annual Audit Report: An annual audited financial report prepared under generally accepted accounting principles by a certified public accountant shall be submitted within ninety days after the end of the fiscal year (June 30). The certified public accountant firm secured to prepare the audit reports shall be chosen by the Manager and approved in writing by the Cabinet.
- 3. Other Reports: The Manager may also be required to submit additional reports as reasonably required from time to time by the Cabinet.

SECTION 30 - OPERATING SYSTEMS

30.000 SYSTEM OVERVIEW

The management and operation of the systems covered in this section of the Request for Proposal shall be addressed in the Manager's management and operations plan, which is due within 45 calendar days of the Notice to Proceed. TRIMARC maintains and has the ability to operate all ITS assets in Kentucky. The Manager currently operates the assets in Jefferson County. Ohio Department of Transportation currently operates ITS assets in Northern Kentucky. KYTC's TOC in Frankfort operates the remaining ITS assets. The Manager will operate the EECT when it opens to traffic. Changes to system and asset operations can be made as needed.

30.100 Roadway Sensor System

The Cabinet has a number of roadway sensors that allow the Operators to monitor the condition of the roadways. The Manager shall be responsible for "Operations" in the Jefferson County Area, and "Response Maintenance", "Preventive Maintenance", "Design Modification", and "Management" of this system statewide.

30.200 Closed-Circuit Television System (CCTV)

The Cabinet has a number of Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) cameras that allow the Operators to monitor the condition of the roadways, verify system alarms, and assist responders. The Manager shall be responsible for "Operations" in the Jefferson County Area, and "Response Maintenance", "Preventive Maintenance", "Design Modification", and "Management" of this system statewide.

30.300 <u>Dynamic/Variable Message Signs (DMS/VMS)</u>

The Cabinet has a number of Dynamic/Variable Message Signs (DMS/VMS). These over-the-roadway message signs allow the Operators to post messages to forewarn motorists of accidents, detours, closures or congestion, and can convey special instructions to motorists monitor the condition of the roadways. The Manager shall be responsible for "Operations" in the Jefferson County Area, and "Response Maintenance", "Preventive Maintenance",

"Design Modification", and "Management" of this system statewide. The Manager shall be responsible for providing a secure network to access the subject signs. TRIMARC personnel also activate the signs in cooperation with the National Weather Service when specific severe weather events occur (tornados, etc.). The Manager may also be required in the future to provide access to any secured network to the Cabinet for the sole purpose of accessing the subject signs.

30.500 TRIMARC Software

The Cabinet has licensed software from Northrop Grumman as its ATMS/ATIS control software. The Cabinet also has a license to use this ATMS/ATIS control software. The Manager shall be prepared to use this software at the start of the Contract. The specifications of Section 10.040 may be required if the Manager is not prepared. A listing of software currently used by TRIMARC is as follows:

	<u>Use</u>	<u>Software</u>	<u>Copies</u>
	Servers		
		Red Hat Linux (Supported)	5
		Red Hat Linux (Unsupported)	3
		Windows Server	3
		Kaspersky Security Server	1
		Active Directory Service	1
		Oracle	2
		MySQL	1
		Joomla	1
		DataProtector Server	1
		TransCommander	1
		Bugzero	1
		Video Management Software	1
Operations Workstations/Laptop			
		Windows 7 (Migrating to Windows 10)	8
		Kaspersky Endpoint Security Client	8
		MS Office	7
		DataProtector Client	6
		Java	7
		HIS Platinum HAR Server	1
		HIS Platinum Client SW	4
		EyeRide	1
		Daktronics Vanguard	2
		Card Scan	1
Engineering Workstations/Laptops			
•	Ì	Windows 7 (Migrating to Windows 10)	7
		Kaspersky Endpoint Security Client	7
		Kaspersky Security Center (Management SW)	2
		MicroStation	1
		ESRI ArcGIS ArcView	1

DataProtector Client	3
Java	7
HIS Platinum Client SW	4
Eclipse/NetBeans	1
Axis Camera Management	2
EyeRide	2
Daktronics Vanguard	2
Smart Bridges	1
Card Scan	1
Maintenance Workstation/Laptops	
<u> </u>	2
Windows 7 (Migrating to Windows 10) Windows XP	1
Kaspersky Endpoint Security Client	2
MS Office	2
Java	3
Axis Camera Management	1
Daktronics Vanguard	1
MDS Radio Config Software	2
EIS WinRTMS Software	2
FlukeView	1
Hardware Drivers/Interface/Configuration Software DSI Central	
HP DesignJet 450C Plotter	1
HP LaserJet 4000 Drivers	1
HP LaserJet 4600 Drivers	1

It is estimated that the Annual License / Warranty / Maintenance Fees for the total software configuration will be between \$46,000 and \$50,000. The Manager shall be responsible for the payment of any such costs as part of the Manager's fee.

30.600 CARS/CARS 511 Traveler Information System

The Cabinet is a member of the CARS-511 Consortium. The Condition Acquisition and Reporting System (CARS) is a geographical/Map-based reporting system for event entry and management, using national ITS standards. The Cabinet is planning to move to an internal Traveler Information System. The manager will work with the Cabinet to integrate TRIMARC operations and statewide ITS assets with the new KYTC Traveler Information System.

30.700 Freeway Service Patrol Monitoring

TRIMARC communicates with TRIMARC Freeway Service Patrol vehicles and the Northern Kentucky Freeway Service Patrol vehicles patrolling the region's freeways. TRIMARC Operators will monitor, coordinate, and dispatch TRIMARC's vehicles.

30.800 TRIMARC Building Security System

The fire protection system consists of smoke detectors, pull stations, and linear heat detectors installed within the TRIMARC. The system allows the TRIMARC operator to monitor specific access points and equipment. It detects unauthorized entry, opens or unlocks specific doors, and allows the operator a degree of remote control from the console.

30.900 Highway Advisory Radio (HAR) System

A HAR system within the TRIMARC operating area provides radio broadcast information on 530 KHZ AM. This system is shared with the Louisville-Jefferson County Convention and Visitors Bureau. TRIMARC accesses the system through the telephone network. When the system is activated, flashers on a number of freeway signs in the area are also activated, advising motorists to tune to 530 AM. TRIMARC also cooperates with the National Weather Service (NWS) to allow the NWS to access the HAR. The Manager shall be responsible for "Operations", "Response Maintenance", "Preventive Maintenance", and "Management" of this system.

31.100 Power Supply System

The power supply system is dual source and includes a primary and secondary power system, an un-interruptible power supply, and a standby diesel-powered generator. The generator was installed in March 2006 and was purchased with a five-year, all-inclusive warranty. There is also an automatic system that notifies TRIMARC personnel when the generator is activated, or if a problem exists. The Manager shall be responsible for periodic testing (minimum once per month), topping-off and/or filling the fuel tank a minimum twice per year, and for notifying the Vendor in the event of generator problems.

SECTION 40 - MAINTENANCE REQUIREMENTS

40.000 MAINTENANCE OVERVIEW

As stated herein, it is the responsibility of the Manager to appropriately and properly manage and operate the facilities at the highest level to serve the States' traveling public over the duration of the contract period. Specifics include but are not limited to the following subsections.

40.010 Use of Premises

The Manager shall be responsible for the careful, safe, and proper use of the premises and will not permit any waste or nuisance thereon, and shall maintain the premises in a clean, neat, and presentable condition. The Manager shall maintain, in good condition and repair, any and all equipment, appliances and other property on the premises, and will not encumber or remove the same, or do or suffer to be done anything whereby the same or any part hereof may be seized, taken on execution, attached, destroyed, or injured, or by which the Manager's right to use may in any way be altered, encumbered, impaired or

prejudiced. The Manager hereby acknowledges and covenants that it acquires hereunder no interest in any buildings, structures, equipment, appliances or other property now on the premises or which may hereafter be placed thereon by the Cabinet, except the right to use the same as a Manager.

40.020 Housekeeping, Buildings, Grounds, and Parking Lots

The Manager, at its own expense, shall clean, and keep continuously clean, the facility-buildings and grounds/parking lots. Except as otherwise specified in this section, the Manager shall perform at its sole expense such other housekeeping functions as are necessary to keep the aforesaid facility, including the equipment therein, in a safe, orderly and presentable condition, to prevent unnecessary depreciation thereof, and keep the buildings free of insects, rodents, vermin, and other pests. Policing of litter on the grounds and parking lots shall be at the sole expense of the Manager.

40.100 CONTRACTED MAINTENANCE

Maintenance or service contracts may be issued for the following items:

- 1. Computer equipment
- 2. Electronic Office Equipment
- 3. Vehicles
- 4. Emergency Response equipment
- 5. Telephone and Communications System
- 6. Housekeeping
- 7. Garbage Pickup
- 8. Landscaping
- 9. Any required storage rental

The Manager shall assume responsibility for administration and costs of the maintenance and service contracts not otherwise provided by the Cabinet. This responsibility shall be covered by the Manager's fee.

SECTION 50 - SERVICES

50.000 GENERAL

The Manager shall provide the following services as a part of this contract. These include Operations, Freeway Service Patrols, Incident Management, and Community Involvement. As a part of each of these services, the Manager shall promote and strive to ensure the safety and mobility of people and goods within the state.

50.100 OPERATIONS

TASK 1: DIRECTION, SUPERVISION, AND ADMINISTRATION

Task 1 consists of all work necessary to manage, direct, supervise, and administer the TRIMARC system in Jefferson County area by the Manager's staff and management support personnel. It also includes participation in meetings by the Manager.

Sub-Task Description

- A. The Manager shall employ, train, schedule, and supervise control room operators, tunnel operators, dispatchers and field support personnel. This shall include accommodating vacations, sick leave, and other absences of operations personnel by training and supervising relief operators, dispatchers and on-call personnel.
- B Subject to approval by the Cabinet and on a cost reimbursement basis, the Cabinet or the Manger may propose changes to application software or hardware. Modifications to the application regarding hardware and software are subject to approval.

The Manager will be responsible for developing effective schedules for the integration of upgrades of all TRIMARC software to mitigate the impact on operations. Included in this process will be backup and recovery plans for contingency as well as parallel operation scenarios if appropriate. Once everyone is fully informed on the software upgrade plan, the Manager will make known the plan with the appropriate agency representatives for final coordination prior to implementation.

- C. The Manager shall assist the Cabinet with establishing repair priority for failed ITS equipment statewide. The Manager's personnel will often be the first to know of an equipment failure and shall be responsible for issuing a work order for equipment repair (see Task 3). Helping establish priorities for repair of failed equipment shall also be considered part of this task.
- D. The Manager shall procure supplies and/or required services for TRIMARC use and operations. The supplies and/or required services to be procured include but are not limited to computer paper, fax machine paper, computer printer ribbons, computer tapes and disks, forms, logs, diaries, record keeping supplies, communications services, repeater charges, minor computer and equipment repairs, etc. The purchase orders shall be issued by the Manager, and paid by the Cabinet as a direct cost of the contract. All purchasing shall be done through a competitive process and will be subject to approval by the Cabinet.
- E. The Manager shall respond to inquiries about TRIMARC operation as directed by the Cabinet. Inquiry responses involve telephone conversations, providing supporting data for evaluation and use by the Cabinet, transmittal of pre-printed materials, accommodation of visitors at the TRIMARC Operations Center, and meetings at locations away from the TRIMARC Operations Center.
- F. The Manager shall maintain records and documentation as directed to support the overall operations of the TRIMARC Operations Center

- G. The Manager shall prepare task schedules for TRIMARC operation, which must be pre-approved by the Cabinet.
- H. The Manager shall participate in post-incident debriefings, with all agencies and vendors involved in managing a major traffic incident, to determine whether existing operating procedures should be changed. This work also includes travel to meetings away from the TRIMARC Operations Center.
- I. The Manager shall participate in incident planning and procedure updating. This task includes Manager work necessary to recommend incident response operating procedure changes.

TASK 2: SYSTEM ENGINEERING AND OPERATION

SUMMARY

This task consists of all work necessary to provide human monitoring of the Cabinet's ATMS and performance of manual tasks necessary for the system's effective operation. It is anticipated that as KYTC adds external hardware in successive ITS equipment build-outs statewide, the level of human monitoring of the system may increase. As a result, data collection efforts and other system maintenance tasks will also increase.

Sub-Task Descriptions

- A. The Manager shall provide monitoring of traffic operations using the Cabinets ATMS, and other software programs as necessary. A minimum of two operators and a supervisor shall be present during the peak travel times each day, that being 7:00 AM to 9 AM and 4:00 PM to 6:30 PM. If the Cabinet deems that additional manpower is necessary to operate the expanded system, the Manager will be authorized by Contract Modification to provide extra personnel. Monitoring of traffic control device operation includes monitoring of field equipment such as CCTV, VMS, traffic sensors, etc.
- B. The Manager shall provide monitoring of the Cabinets' ITS equipment failure through a monitoring system. Operators shall acknowledge equipment failure, and evaluate the system reported failure through a series of operations procedures. Upon verification of an equipment failure, the Manager shall call for appropriate repairs, and return the equipment to on-line status upon completion of repairs or installation of a spare. All repair/replace activities will be documented in a maintenance log and summary reports provided twice each year. The Manager will monitor and report the amount of time vendors are taking to perform factory repairs and return to the Project.
- C. The Manager shall provide management of traffic incidents. Incident management shall be performed in accordance with existing and Manager developed standard operating procedures, approved by the Cabinet's Program Manager.

- D. The Manager shall provide monitoring of closed circuit television, police radio scanners, radio transmissions, and weather stations, speed info data and any additional communications equipment in use at the TRIMARC Operations Center. The Manager shall also insure that coordination and communications are maintained with surrounding Traffic Management Centers (e.g., Columbus, Indianapolis, Nashville, Lexington, KYTC TOC, etc.)
- E. The TRIMARC operators shall direct phone inquiries from agencies, private citizens, and the media regarding TRIMARC policies and operations procedures to the Cabinet's Public Information Officer or his designee in the Highway District. TRIMARC Operators may be authorized by the Public Information Officer to provide basic traffic information on road conditions and incidents as necessary.
- F. From time to time, as part of their normal duties, the TRIMARC operators will be required to assist in traffic data collection using the automated traffic data acquisition features of the TRIMARC Operations Center System.
- G. From the Control Center the Manager shall operate and display messages on fixed, and portable changeable message signs. Communications to these signs is by means of telephone lines, wireless links, and modems.
- H. Highway Advisory Radio (HAR) sites will also be monitored, in cooperation with the Louisville Jefferson County Convention and Visitors Bureau.
- I. The Manager shall communicate with TRIMARC Freeway Service Patrol vehicles and the Northern Kentucky Freeway Service Patrol. TRIMARC Operators will coordinate and dispatch TRIMARC's vehicles.
- J. Regardless of the status of the TRIMARC software, the Manager shall continue to operate the TRIMARC Operations Center using whatever means are available. The only exception is the EECT, which will have backup operating procedures in the event of emergencies.
- K. The Manager shall provide system engineering services to continually evaluate and enhance TRIMARC operations. These services will involve working with other transportation and public safety initiatives which are impacted by or potentially will impact TRIMARC operations. For example, construction projects in state may require the relocation of the Cabinets ITS assets. The Manager shall make recommendations on how best to handle the assets and will coordinate activities.
- L. From time to time, the Cabinet may find a new technology that might be of benefit to the ITS initiatives throughout the Commonwealth. The Manager shall assist the Cabinet in the evaluation through various means not limited to prototyping, document research, and temporary deployment. Results of these activities will be documented in summary white paper reports.

M. The Manager shall be the TRIMARC System Administrator. In this role, the Manager shall manage the updates to all system software (commercial off the shelf and TRIMARC specific developed software) to mitigate the impact on daily operations. The Manager shall be responsible for the cost of keeping all software warranty and maintenance contracts for technical support and periodic updates.

TASK 3: Equipment Maintenance

SUMMARY

This task consists of work to maintain all TRIMARC assets and all statewide ITS assets.

Sub-Task Descriptions

- A. The Manager shall monitor the operating status of all statewide ITS assets. If an anomaly is detected, the Manager shall apply best engineering practices to isolate the problem and to take corrective action to restore service. A current list of all ITS assets is attached.
- B. It is anticipated that the Manager shall establish commercial extended warranties and maintenance contracts for standard computer and communications equipment such as servers, workstations, printers, network switches, and routers. For critical resources, the contracts shall minimize the time to restore service to 24 hours Monday through Friday.
- C. The Manager shall maintain all TRIMARC field equipment and statewide ITS assets. This includes cameras, detectors, fixed dynamic signs, portable dynamic message signs, highway advisory radio, and any other equipment deemed under the control of the TRIMARC system.
- D. While the vast majority of TRIMARC field equipment are mounted on lowering systems, there are assets that may require special equipment to access and maintain. Any shoulder or lane closure required to maintain the equipment shall be coordinated with KYTC and/or ODOT District Offices, as appropriate, and be performed during non-peak travel times.
- E. The Manager shall be responsible for tracking all equipment that must be returned to the vendor for factory repair.
- F. The Manager shall be responsible for the maintenance of the spares inventory and report on the status of repairs and sparing levels twice each year. The Manager shall review the performance of all equipment and recommend adjustments to the sparing levels.
- G. The Manager shall provide qualified maintenance technicians capable of performing bench level maintenance on ITS field equipment. The maintenance technicians shall also be qualified to operate basic electronic test equipment such as oscilloscopes, voltage meters, and data analyzers.

- H. The Manager shall perform and document preventive maintenance on all ITS field equipment. The current preventive maintenance plan is shown on Appendix B.
- I. All maintenance actions shall be documented in a Maintenance Log and the associated TRIMARC data bases.

TASK 4: SYSTEM INTEGRATION

SUMMARY

The TRIMARC Program strives to stay current with the latest technologies and ITS applications and to expand/modify the existing system. The Manager shall provide engineering related services to assist with this goal.

Sub-Task Description

- A. The Manger shall provide for system expansion. This may include assisting the Cabinet with integrating equipment and software solutions to new projects or modifying existing projects.
- B. The Manager shall from time to time research and recommend new equipment and/or ITS applications for evaluation for TRIMARC.

TASK 9: Tunnel Operations

SUMMARY

This task consists of all work necessary to provide human monitoring of the EECT and performance of manual tasks necessary for the EECT's effective operation.

Sub-Task Descriptions

- A. The Manager shall provide monitoring of traffic operations using the EECT systems and other software programs and field equipment as necessary once the EECT opens to traffic. A minimum of one tunnel certified EECT operator will be present at all times. Monitoring of traffic control device operation includes monitoring of field equipment such as CCTV, DMS, traffic sensors, EECT equipment, etc.
- B. The Manager shall provide monitoring of the EECT's assets and systems. All asset and system failures will be reported to appropriate District 5 personnel. EECT system or asset failures that require the closure of the EECT will be reported immediately. District 5 is responsible for maintenance and repair of the EECT systems and assets, except for the ITS assets noted in part C below.
- C. The Manager shall provide preventive maintenance of EECT ITS assets, twice per

fiscal year. These assets are cameras and DMS associated with the EECT and listed on appendix A as EECT ITS assets. Emergency repairs of EECT cameras and DMS can be performed when necessary. All other EECT equipment and system repairs will be the responsibility of KYTC's District 5. All traffic control in the EECT will be provided by or approved by KYTC's District 5 Office.

- D. The Manager shall ensure all tunnel operators and supervisors are trained in EECT operating policies and emergency procedures. The EECT operators shall direct phone inquiries from agencies, private citizens, and the media regarding TRIMARC policies and operations procedures to the Cabinet's Public Information Officer or his designee in Highway District 5. TRIMARC Operators may be authorized by the Public Information Officer to provide basic traffic information on road conditions and incidents as necessary.
- E. In the event the Manager loses the ability to operate EECT, operations will shift to the KYTC's Operation Center in Frankfort or other facilities, according to EECT procedures. Local Emergency personnel also have the ability to assume operations of the EECT. The Manager will work with District 5 and other affected parties until the EECT operators can resume EECT operations. The Manager and tunnel operators will work with local law enforcement and Louisville Metro safe during an emergency, as specified in EECT operating procedures.

50.200 FREEWAY SERVICE PATROLS

TASK 5: FREEWAY SERVICE PATROLS

SUMMARY

The Manager, as a part of this Contract, shall provide Freeway Service Patrols. The Manager shall make best effort to secure or retain private sector funding required to provide the necessary vans. Examples include investment, equipment donations, or corporate sponsorship (. The goal is to eliminate the public investment. The Manager shall provide for the operation of the Freeway Service Patrol van(s) in accordance with Section 50.200. Nothing in this Section shall prevent the Manager from contracting for this service.

Scope of Work

The Manager shall provide a Freeway Service Patrol (FSP) on designated routes at specified times in support of the TRIMARC System. Currently, there are two private sector Freeway Service Patrol vehicles serving TRIMARC and two serving Northern Kentucky. That number could change at any time. The primary purpose of the FSP is to provide congestion relief which may include assisting motorists and/or other service personnel in incident situations including, but not limited to: mechanically disabled vehicles, accidents, lost motorists, sick or injured motorists, pedestrians or animals on the roadway, removal of non-hazardous debris, vehicle or brush fires, fuel leaks, and assistance to law enforcement officers. All FSP services will be provided free of charge to the motorist. FSP drivers shall not accept or solicit gratuities or favors of any sort, nor shall they recommend specific tow, repair, or body shop businesses.

This service is not to be confused with KYTC Freeway Service Patrol vehicles that currently operate, or may operate, within portions of Jefferson County and Northern Kentucky.

Procedures and Priorities

The priorities of the FSP shall be:

- Provide for the safety and well-being of the people at the incident scene.
- Provide for the rapid clearing of vehicles, debris, and equipment from the travel lanes.
- Provide recovery information as appropriate.
- Serve as permanent vehicle probes, reporting on a routine schedule to the TRIMARC Operations Control Center (OCC) about traffic conditions, confirming sensor data, link speeds, message sign content, and other equipment performance.

Incident response shall take precedence over motorist assistance. If an abandoned/disabled vehicle is encountered while in route to an incident scene, the vehicle shall be inspected to ensure there is no medical emergency.

When and where conditions permit, minor repairs may be performed on the highway shoulders. Where conditions do not warrant, the vehicle shall be removed from the highway to a drop-off location (e.g. a parking lot near an entrance or exit ramp). Vehicles shall be serviced according to the following guidelines:

- If the vehicle is mechanically disabled and the problem is apparent, perform the needed service
 on the highway shoulder. This includes, but is not limited to: providing fuel, oil, water, or
 providing other essential automotive fluids; repairing, changing, or inflating flat tires; repairing or
 replacing cooling system hoses; replacing fan belts; wiring-up or removing portions of damaged
 exhaust systems; or replacing or repairing other mechanical or electrical components that may be
 quickly serviced on site.
- If the vehicle is mechanically disabled and the problem is not readily apparent or the repair time exceeds 15 minutes, the vehicle shall be removed from the interstate or freeway, with the owner's permission. The appropriate dispatch center shall be notified to dispatch a rotation tow service, dispatch a motorist-specified tow service, advise a friend or relative to assist them, or other motorist arrangement.
- If the vehicle has been involved in an accident, no attempt shall be made to repair the vehicle. The vehicle should be removed as soon as possible to the nearest safe drop-off point.

There may be instances where the FSP drivers are requested to assist law enforcement authorities with traffic control or other scene requirements. In these instances, the FSP drivers shall follow the instructions of the enforcement authority in charge of the incident.

Note that in all cases, it is expected that the TRIMARC Operations Center shall be notified as to the FSP vehicle's status since all FSP vehicles are under direct supervision of TRIMARC.

During the specified and contracted hours of operation, the FSP vehicles will be exclusively dedicated to the freeway service patrol and shall not be removed from their specified routes except for moving a vehicle to a drop-off point, replenishment of expendable items (e.g. gasoline or fire extinguisher), or as directed by the OCC control room.

Corporate Sponsorship

Corporate sponsorship may be used to underwrite a portion of the cost of the freeway service patrol. Sponsorship shall be limited to a single corporate entity. Sponsorship shall be subject to approval by the KYTC. The bid prices shall reflect the cost to the Cabinet excluding costs underwritten by a corporate sponsor.

Vehicle and Equipment Requirements

At a minimum, all FSP vehicles must be equipped with the following equipment or approved equivalent (such as battery operated pneumatic tools):

- o Push bar & tow ball
- o Public Address (PA) system and external speaker (minimum of 120 watts)
- o Front & rear 12-volt jump start system
- o Portable jump starter
- o Deep cycle batteries for jump-start system
- o Minimum of five gallons diesel, water, & gas
- o Funnels
- o Air compressor
- o Cellular phone
- Citizen Band (CB) radio
- Two-way communication compatible with TOC (800 MHz radios will be supplied for the Louisville area. Cell phone communication for the Northern KY units is acceptable)
- o Roof mounted emergency light bars
- Emergency lights FSP vehicles will be clearly marked with sufficient emergency lighting to warn approaching motorists and provided sufficient protection while assisting a motorist. All emergency lights should comply with the Kentucky statute on lighting 189.920 (4), which states All public safety vehicles shall be equipped with one (1) or more flashing, rotating, or oscillating yellow lights, visible under normal atmospheric conditions from a distance of five hundred
 - (500) feet to the front of the vehicle. In compliance with Kentucky statute, safety vehicles should also be equipped with yellow emergency lighting.
- 28" Safety cones that meet Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) specifications
- Type B Directional Arrow board

- o Flashlights (2)
- Fire extinguishers CO2, ABC, & H2O
- o Street broom and flat shovel
- First aid kit
- o Personal Protective Equipment
- o Portable air can
- o Paper towel dispenser & hand cleaner
- o Pipe, fittings, and clamps
- o Diagnostic test equipment
- Tow chain and "J" hook
- o Sledge hammer (15 lb.)
- o Nuts, bolts, cotter pins, springs, etc.
- o Wire & electrical repair components
- o Minimum 6 quarts oil and 6 quarts transmission fluid
- O Complete set of mechanic's hand tools, including include both Standard and Metric wrenches, ratchets, sockets, extension bars and hex keys, flat and Phillips screwdrivers, Torx bit and screwdriver bit set, pliers, etc.
- O Water & gas line antifreeze (in season)
- o Minimum 5 gallons coolant
- o Brake fluid, hydraulic fluid
- o Hazmat kit (booms and pads)
- o Oil absorbent
- Lock out kit
- o Electrical and duct tape
- Mechanics wire
- o Winch
- Assorted filters and hoses
- O Hydraulic jacks (20 ton capacity bottle jack and 2 ton capacity floor jack)
- o Crowbars, bolt cutters, and hack saw
- o Trash bags
- o Bottled water
- Blankets
- o Rain ponchos
- o FSP vehicle's heater and air conditioner shall be functional and in working order

Each FSP vehicle shall be painted white. The vehicles shall be signed to clearly indicate that they are FSP vehicles. Appropriate upkeep shall be required in order to maintain appearance. Each vehicle shall display the KYTC program logo on both sides of the vehicle as well as on the rear of the vehicle. Identification shall also be displayed on the hood of the each vehicle. The logo of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet shall be affixed to both the driver and passenger doors. Signage indicating the corporate sponsor, if applicable, may be included on each side of the vehicle. No other company

names, logos, or other advertising or markings are allowed. All titles and logos are to be kept clean and readable throughout the vehicle's operation. Any change in the vehicle paint scheme or logos shall be approved by the KYTC Program Manager. The vehicles shall also be kept clean and washed.

Personnel Requirements

All FSP drivers shall be 21 years of age or older and have a minimum of a high school education or its equivalent. All drivers shall possess a valid, current driver's license. They must demonstrate the ability to provide safe and proper service as well as the ability to exercise reasonable judgment in carrying out their patrol duties. All drivers shall be ASE certified auto mechanics within one year of hire date or possess similar demonstrable certifications or experience. The Service Provider shall provide CPR and advanced first aid training. A minimum of one supervisor is required. The supervisor will act as a liaison between the FSP drivers and Manager. The supervisor and/or drivers shall be available to attend meetings as requested. FSP drivers shall in no way be considered employees of the Manager, or KYTC.

- ∉ Be able to lift 75 pounds.
- Pass a pre-employment alcohol drug and background check. Results must be provided to the Manager.
- Pass an annual random alcohol drug test. Results must be provided to the Manager. The Manager may also require the contractor to test an employee upon reasonable suspicion or upon involvement as the driver of the vehicle in an accident.

Uniform requirements

All FSP drivers shall have a common uniform. These uniforms, at a minimum, shall be identified with the driver's name and photo identification, the provider's name (or other identifying mark), as well as patches indicating the driver's medical certification. Protective shoes or boots shall be worn. All outer clothing (e.g. vests, rain gear) shall be reflectorized. Uniforms shall be presentable at all times. Therefore several sets shall be provided in the vehicle. Each driver's uniform shall clearly identify him or her as an FSP driver. Picture/signature ID(s) will be provided to all drivers to be carried on their person.

Training Requirements

Each FSP driver shall have, at a minimum, 120 hours of basic incident management training including, but not limited to: patrol procedures, supervised patrol observation, problem solving techniques, social skills and driver courtesy, traffic reporting, vehicle maintenance, radio and telephone procedures, emergency response and accident management, standard first aid, automotive maintenance and/or repair, hazmat response, and patrol area orientation. Credit may be given for drivers who already have proficiency in one or more areas. It is expected that driver training shall periodically be reviewed and additional training provided as required. The Manager shall conduct short training classes to familiarize OCC personnel with the full capability of the FSP.

Drivers must obtain certifications and/or advanced training in the following areas:

- o ASE Certified Mechanics or possess similar demonstrable certifications or experience
- o Advanced First Aid and CPR certification

- HazMat response
- o Firefighting and fire extinguisher handling
- o Animal Control
- o National Incident Management System (NIMS) ICS100 Certification
- Strategic Highway Research Program (SHRP2) Traffic Incident Management Certification
- Electric Vehicle Safety for Emergency Responders

Vehicle storage

Space shall be provided at TRIMARC for parking the FSP vehicles. Other parking arrangements are possible if it will improve the responsiveness of the service. If such arrangements are made, they shall be approved in advance by the Manager.

Reporting requirements

Daily activity logs shall be maintained by each driver indicating each day's starting and stopping times by vehicle and the mileage covered. In addition, these logs shall include the time, problem location, resolution, time required to assist, and wait time.

On a monthly basis, statistical reports (e.g. sum totals, averages) based upon the above information shall be provided to the Manager. At least once per day, a list of the abandoned vehicles shall be provided to the TRIMARC Operations center. All reports are to be submitted electronically in Microsoft Excel format.

The Manager shall maintain information detailing the activities of the freeway service patrols. The data shall include the GPS-based location and time data being collected by the contractor. This data shall be available to be used by the KYTC Program Manager to assess the effectiveness of the current route and time schedules as well as the services provided.

A postage paid response card shall be provided to individuals assisted by the FSP. The card is to be completed by the individual and mailed to the Manager. Photocopies of the feedback cards shall be made available to the KYTC upon request.

Routes and Coverage (Normal Operations)

The two TRIMARC Freeway Service Patrol vehicles operate from 6:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, excluding Holidays. They do not have a specific route assignment but are monitored and controlled from the TRIMARC Operations Center. Generally, they cover I-64, I-65, I-71 and I-264 in Jefferson County. If needed, a vehicle can be diverted to I-265, also in Jefferson County. There are two Freeway Service Patrol vehicles that patrol I-75/I-71, I-275 and I-471in Northern Kentucky during peak times only Monday through Friday.

Routes and Coverage (Holidays and Special Events)

Thunder over Louisville – The Manager shall arrange for Four (4) FSP Vehicles to operate as assigned from 3:00 p.m. to 1:00 a.m.

Kentucky Derby – Two FSP Vehicles operate as assigned from 12:00 Noon to 8:00 p.m.

Holidays – FSP Vehicles do not operate on New Years Day, Memorial Day, 4th of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day. Special Events – Stationary

The hours and locations of events are to be determined by the Manager. Each event shall require at least one (1) FSP vehicle and one (1) FSP driver. Special events shall consist of, but not be limited to, public relations events in which the FSP vehicle and driver are on display. The driver shall also conduct demonstrations and tours of the FSP vehicle.

Special Events/Emergency Routes - Patrolling

This item consists of specially designated routes, days, and hours of coverage as specified by the Manger. Special events shall include, but not be limited to, baseball and football games, Thunder Over Louisville, Kentucky Derby and other civic/social events requiring traffic management.

The Manager shall notify the Cabinet concerning special events coverage at least five (5) business days in advance of an event. Emergency routes shall be established by the Manager on an as-needed basis.

All requirements shall be incidental to this item. Method and measurement and basis of payment shall be per hour, with a maximum of six thousand, five hundred (6,500) hours of service anticipated annually.

50.300 SPECIAL SYSTEMS ENGINEERING PROJECTS

TASK 6: Special Systems Engineering Projects

SUMMARY

This task covers Engineering and Engineering-Related Services by the Manager in support of the Transportation Cabinet to develop plans, specifications, recommendations and engineering estimates for the deployment of Cabinet ITS assets and for the installation of related services and equipment.

Sub-Task Description

- A. The TRIMARC Manager shall from time-to-time provide engineering and engineering-related services to develop additional specifications for ITS and project elements not normally covered in the Kentucky "Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction".
- B. The Manager shall provide civil and electrical engineering services to engineer construction and installation solutions in the form of project plan sheets. All sheets shall be stamped by a Licensed Professional Engineer as appropriate.
- C. The Manager shall prepare a detailed item list of materials and activities and provide estimated quantities and unit pricing in the form of an engineering estimate.

- D. The Manager shall participate in planning and status meetings as required for this task.
- E. The Manager shall provide construction inspections as required.
- F. When tasked under Section 50.300, the Manager shall install Highway Reference Markers (0.2) along the remaining freeways in Jefferson County.
- G. When tasked under Section 50.300, the Manager shall provide plans, specifications, and engineering estimates for the deployment of additional DMS and rehabilitation and relocation of the Cabinets' existing DMS.
- H. When tasked under Section 50.300, the Manager shall provide plans, specifications, and engineering estimates for the deployment of the additional cameras or relocation of existing cameras.
- I. When tasked under Section 50.300, the Manager shall provide plans, specifications, and engineering estimates for the deployment of additional roadway sensors.
- J. When tasked under Section 50.300, the Manager shall provide an update to the TRIMARC ITS Strategic Pan.

The Manager shall coordinate ITS device and system level testing and provide recommendations to the Cabinet on final acceptance of the pay item. Payment for this service shall be incidental to payment for the services enumerated within this Section.

50.400 UTILITY MANAGEMENT

TASK 7: Utility Management

The Manager shall be responsible for the payment of utility and ancillary support costs for the ITS Program on a cost reimbursable basis. These shall include but not be limited to:

- o TRIMARC Operations Center
- Facility Electrical Costs
- Facility Water and Sewer Costs
- o Facility Trash service costs (City and Private Hauler)
- Additional Facility Trailer Storage
- o Facility Security Monitoring
- o Facility ISP Service (Minimum of 2 T1 Circuits)
- o Facility Weekly Cleaning (Minimum of 2 per week)
- o Facility Exterior Wash (Once per Year in Mid April)
- o Facility Generator Fuel (Top off twice each year)
- o Field Equipment
- Equipment Electrical Service
- o Equipment Communications Costs
- o Dial up Circuits
- T1 Circuits

- Leased Lines
- o Wireless Leased Services
- ISP Services
- o Cellular Service
- Speed Data Costs

50.500 EMERGENCY REPAIRS

TASK 8: Emergency Repairs

The Manager shall be responsible for the timely repair of damaged ITS assets. The Manager shall submit the cost for reimbursement by the Cabinet. Major repairs, that require parts that are not kept in stock, require approval by the Cabinet.

The Manager shall track the costs of the repairs separately and make a good faith attempt to first secure repayment for these costs from the responsible party or their insurance agency, if the equipment was damaged in a traffic incident.

50.600 INCIDENT MANAGEMENT

The Manager, as a part of the Contract resulting from this Request for Proposal, shall promote Highway Incident Management on a Regional Basis. The Manager shall submit within forty-five (45) days to the Cabinet a plan to involve community and business leader in Highway Incident Management. This plan shall engage the community and business leadership, but the responder community as well.

50.700 COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

The Manager, as a part of the Contract resulting from this Request for Proposal, shall provide and promote such Community Involvement as appropriate for this contract. The Manager shall submit within forty-five (45) days to the Cabinet a plan for local Community Involvement by TRIMARC.

SECTION 60 - TERMS AND CONDITIONS

60.000 GENERAL

The contract between the Cabinet and the Manager shall be based on: (1) the Request for Proposal and any amendments thereto, and (2) the Manager's proposal submitted in response to the Request for Proposal. In the event of a conflict in language between the two documents referenced above, the provisions and requirements set forth and/or referenced in the Request for Proposal shall govern. In the event that an issue is addressed in one document that is not addressed in the other document, no conflict in language shall be deemed to occur. However, the Cabinet reserves the right to clarify any contractual relationship in writing with the concurrence of the Manager, and such written clarification

shall govern in case of conflict with the applicable requirements stated in the Request for Proposal or the Manager's proposal. In all other matters not affected by the written clarification, if any, the Request for Proposal shall govern.

No modification or change of any provision in the contract shall be made, or construed to have been made, unless such modification is mutually agreed to in writing by the Manager and the Cabinet, and incorporated as a written amendment to the Contract and processed through the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet prior to the effective date of such modification or change. Memoranda of understanding and correspondence shall not be construed as Contract Modifications.

The contract shall be construed according to the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. Any legal proceedings against the Commonwealth regarding this Request for Proposal or any resultant contract shall be brought in Commonwealth of Kentucky administrative or judicial forums. Venue shall be in Franklin County, Commonwealth of Kentucky.

60.010 Term of Contract

Other than the Transition Period (Section 10.040), the contract established from this Request for Proposal shall begin by **November 1, 2016**, unless agreed upon earlier by the Manager and the Cabinet and end on **June 30, 2018**. The contract established from this Request for Proposal shall be eligible for up to **five (5) two-year renewals**. The renewals, full or partial, are at the complete discretion of the States. The terms of the contract may be re-negotiated every two years. All parties to the contract shall concur in writing to the re-negotiation. The Manager may propose that unit prices carried forward by a Contract Renewal be adjusted by a maximum of the change in the Consumers Price Index (CPI-W) over the past two years. The Manager may propose that The CPI-W change for the first Contract Renewal be based upon the change in the CPI-W Index from June 2016 thru June 2018, and the maximum proposed change for the second Contract Renewal be based upon the CPI-W Index change from June 2018 through June 2020, etc.

60.020 Deviations from Contract

The stated requirements appearing elsewhere in the Request for Proposal shall become a part of the terms and conditions of any resulting contract. Any deviations there from shall be a result of negotiations with the Manager and shall become a part of the contract.

60.030 Entire Agreement

The resulting contract represents the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral, between the parties hereto relating to the subject hereof. It shall be independent of and have no effect on any other contracts. A record of formal contract negotiations between the contractual parties shall be prepared by the Cabinet and shall become a permanent part of the contract file.

60.040 Notice to Proceed

The Manager shall not commence any work until all necessary parties have fully executed a valid contract and the Cabinet has issued a Notice to Begin Work.

60.050 Advertising Award

The Manager shall agree not to refer to awards in commercial advertising in such a manner as to state or imply that the firm or its services are endorsed or preferred by the Cabinet. There shall be no prohibition against the Manager listing the Cabinet among its clients in a statement of qualifications and experience.

60.060 Notices

After contract award all notices pursuant to this contract shall be deemed duly given when: (1) delivered by hand or (2) sent by registered mail, return receipt requested, and received no later than 3 days after posting.

All notices from the Manager to the Cabinet are to be delivered to:

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet State Highway Engineer's Office Transportation Cabinet Office Building 200 Mero Street Frankfort, Kentucky 40622

60.070 Titles and Numbering of Sections and Subsections

Titles and numbering of sections and subsections used in this Request for proposal are for the purpose of facilitating ease of reference only and shall not be construed to infer a contractual construction or language.

60.100 Performance Bond

The Manager shall secure a performance bond in the amount of One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000). The performance bond shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the award of the contract but before the Cabinet issues a Notice to Begin Work. The amount of the performance may be adjusted at the time of re-negotiation. The performance bond shall be renewed each year and shall be required throughout the contract.

60.200 Termination Of Contract

The contract resulting from this Request for Proposal shall be subject to the following termination provisions. The contract may be terminated by the Cabinet at any time for

default, Manager bankruptcy, convenience, unavailability of funds, failure to comply with confidentiality laws, or corporate takeovers (friendly or unfriendly). This list is not inclusive.

60.210 Termination for Default

(From 200 KAR 5:312 Section 1)

Any Manager who is determined in writing by the purchasing official to be in breach of any of the terms and conditions of a contract with the Commonwealth of Kentucky held by such Manager, shall, at the discretion of the purchasing official, be declared in default and such contract may be terminated as a result of such default.

A default in performance by a Manager for which a contract may be terminated shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to: failure to perform the contract according to its terms, conditions and specifications; failure to make delivery within the time specified or according to a delivery schedule fixed by the contract; late payment or nonpayment of bills for labor, materials, supplies, or equipment furnished in connection with a contract for construction services as evidenced by mechanics liens filed pursuant to the provisions of KRS Chapter 376, or letters of indebtedness received from creditors by the purchasing agency; failure to diligently prosecute the work under contract for construction services.

The Cabinet shall not be liable for any further payment to a Manager under a contract terminated for the Manager's default after the date of such default as determined by the purchasing official except for commodities, supplies, equipment or services delivered and accepted on or before the date of default and for which payment had not been made as of that date. The Manager and/or the Manager's surety, if a performance or payment bond has been required under the contract, shall be jointly and severally liable to the Cabinet for all loss, cost or damage sustained by the Cabinet as a result of the Manager's default; provided, however that a Manager's surety liability shall not exceed the final sum specified in the Manager's bond.

60.220 Termination for Manager Bankruptcy

In the event of the filing of a petition in bankruptcy by or against the Manager, the Cabinet shall have the right to terminate the contract upon the same terms and conditions as a termination for default.

60.230 Termination for Convenience

(200 KAR 5:312 Section 2)

The Cabinet shall be authorized to terminate for its own convenience all contracts for the procurement of supplies and services when the purchasing official has determined that such terminations will be in the Cabinet's best interests. When it has been determined that a contract should be terminated for the convenience of the Cabinet, the purchasing agency shall be authorized to negotiate a settlement with the Manager according to terms deemed

just and equitable by the purchasing agency. Compensation to a Manager for lost profits on a contract terminated for convenience of the Cabinet shall not exceed an amount proportionate to the sum that the Manager's total expected margin of profit on the contract bore to the contract price, based on the total out of pocket expense incurred by the Manager as of the date of termination of the contract. Whenever a contract is terminated for the convenience of the Cabinet, the Manager shall have the burden of establishing the amount of compensation to which the Manager is believed to be entitled by submission of complete and accurate cost data employed in submitting the bid or proposal for the contract and evidence of expenses paid or incurred in performance of the contract from the date of award through the date of termination. Payment of the sum agreed to in settlement of a contract terminated for convenience of the Cabinet shall be made from the same source of funds or account as the original contract.

60.240 Termination for Unavailability of Funds and/or Spending Authority

In the event that Cabinet funds and/or spending authority for the Contract become unavailable, the Cabinet shall have the right to terminate the Contract without penalty and upon the same terms and conditions as termination for convenience. Availability of funds will be determined at the sole discretion of the Cabinet.

60.250 Termination for Failure to Comply with Confidentiality Provisions

The Cabinet shall have the right to void the contract if the Manager fails to adhere to the provisions of disclosure laws as referenced in this Request for proposal. The terms and conditions for termination under this section shall be the same terms and conditions set forth in Section 60.210.

60.260 Notice of Termination

The Cabinet shall have the right to terminate or cancel the contract at any time upon providing a written Notice of Termination by certified mail to the Manager. The termination shall be effective not less than thirty days, and may be greater than thirty days, after the postmarked date of the Notice of Termination. The Notice of Termination shall state the reason for termination, the effective date of termination, and the extent to which the contract is canceled.

60.270 Procedure on Termination

Upon delivery by certified mail to the Manager of a Notice of Termination, the Manager shall:

- Stop work under the contract on the date and to the extent specified in the Notice of Termination;
- Place no further orders for materials, services, or facilities, except as may be necessary for completion of such portion of work under the contract as is not terminated;

- With the approval or ratification of the contracting officer, settle all outstanding liabilities and all claims arising out of such termination of orders or agreements with subcontractors, the cost of which would be reimbursable in whole or in part, in accordance with the provision of the contract;
- Terminate all orders to the extent that they relate to the performance of work terminated by the Notice of Termination;
- Complete the performance of such part of the work as shall not have been terminated by the Notice of Termination; and
- Take such action as may be necessary, or as the Cabinet may direct, for the protection
 and preservation of the property related to the contract which is in the possession of
 the Manager and in which the Cabinet has or may acquire an interest.

60.280 Termination Claims

After receipt of a Notice of Termination, the Manager shall submit to the Contracting Officer any termination claim in the form and with the certification prescribed by the Contracting Officer. Such claim shall be submitted promptly but in no event later then two (2) months from the effective date of termination, unless one or more extensions in writing are granted by the Contracting Officer within such two (2) month period or authorized extension thereof. However, if the Contracting Officer determines that the facts justify such action, the Contracting Officer may receive and act upon any such termination claim at any time after such two (2) month period or any extension thereof. Upon failure of the Manager to submit its termination claim within the time allowed, the Contracting Officer may, subject to any review required by the Cabinet procedures in effect as of the date of execution of the contract, determine, on the basis of information available to the Contracting Officer, the amount, if any, due to the Manager by reason of the termination and shall thereupon cause to be paid to the Manager the amount so determined.

Subject to the provisions of the previous paragraphs and subject to any review required by the Cabinet procedures in effect as of the date of execution of the contract, the Manager and the Cabinet may agree upon the amounts to be paid to the Manager by reason of the total or partial termination of work pursuant to this article. The contract shall be amended accordingly.

In the event of the failure of the Manager and the Cabinet to agree in whole or in part as to the amounts with respect to costs to be paid to the Manager in connection with the total or partial termination of work pursuant to this article, the Cabinet shall determine on the basis of information available, the amount, if any, due to the Manager by reason of termination and shall pay to the Manager the amount so determined.

The Manager shall have the right of appeal, as stated under Disputes, Subsection 60.500, from any such determination made by the Cabinet.

60.300 Changes in Scope

The Cabinet may, at any time by a written order, make changes within the general scope of the contract including but not limited to the length and renewal. No changes in scope are to be conducted except at the approval of the Cabinet. If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the performance of any part of the work under the contract, whether changed or not changed by any such order, a mutually satisfactory adjustment shall be made in the contract price, and the contract shall be modified in writing accordingly.

60.400 Force Majeure

The Manager shall not be liable for any excess cost to the Cabinet if the failure to perform the contract arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Manager. Such causes may include, but are not restricted to, acts of God, fires, quarantine restriction, and freight embargoes. In all cases, the failure to perform shall be beyond the control and without fault or negligence of the Manager. The Manager shall take all possible steps to promptly recover from such occurrences.

60.500 Disputes

Except as otherwise provided in this contract, a question or act arising under this contract which is not disposed of by agreement, amendment, or addenda shall be decided by the Secretary of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet who shall reduce his decision to writing, and shall serve by certified mail a copy on the Manager. The decision of the Secretary shall be final and conclusive unless within thirty (30) days from the date of service, the Manager files with the Secretary of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet a petition for an administrative hearing. The Secretary's decisions in the event of such a petition shall be final subject to the Manager's right to administrative review pursuant to Kentucky Statutes.

Pending final determination of any dispute hereunder, the Manager shall proceed diligently with the performance of the contract and in accordance with the Secretary of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet's direction.

This section does not preclude consideration of legal questions in connection with the decision provided for above; provided, that nothing in this contract shall be construed as making the final decision of any administrative official, representative or board on a question of law.

60.600 Confidentiality

The Manager shall comply with the provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 and instruct its employees to use the same degree of care as it uses with its own data to keep confidential information concerning client data, the business of the Cabinet, its financial affairs, its relations with its citizens and its employees, as well as any other information which may be

specifically classified as confidential by the Cabinet in writing to the Manager. All federal and state regulations and statutes related to confidentiality shall be applicable to the Manager. The Manager shall have an appropriate agreement with its employees to that effect, provided however, that the foregoing will not apply to:

- Information which the Cabinet has released in writing from being maintained in confidence;
- Information which at the time of disclosure is in the public domain by having been printed and published and available to the public in libraries or other public places where such data is usually collected; and
- Information which, after disclosure, becomes part of the public domain as defined above, through no act of the Manager.

60.610 Confidentiality of Contract Terms

The Manager and the Cabinet agree that all information communicated between them before the effective date of the agreement shall be received in strict confidence, shall not be necessarily disclosed by the receiving party, its agents, or employees without prior written consent of the other party. Such material shall be kept confidential subject to state and federal disclosure laws.

Upon signing the contract by all parties, terms of the contract become available to the public, pursuant to the provisions of Kentucky laws.

60.700 Personnel

The Manager shall warrant that all persons assigned by it to the performance of this contract shall be employees of the Manager (or specified subcontractor) and shall be fully qualified to perform work herein. The Manager shall include a similar provision in any contract with any subcontractor selected to perform work hereunder.

Personnel commitments identified in the Manager's proposal shall be considered mandatory to the work performed under this Request for proposal. Staffing must include those individuals as proposed and at the level of effort proposed. Failure to provide the designated contract staff may be considered a breach of contract and appropriate termination proceedings may be started. Replacement of personnel shall be with personnel of equal ability and qualifications.

During the course of the contract, the Cabinet reserves the right to require the Manager to reassign or otherwise remove from the project any Manager employee found unacceptable by the Cabinet.

60.710 Independent Manager

It is expressly agreed that the Manager and any Subcontractor and agents, officers, and employees of the Manager or Subcontractor in the performance of this contract shall act in an independent capacity and not as officers or employees of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet. It is further expressly agreed that this contract shall not be construed as a partnership or joint venture between the Manager or any Subcontractor and the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet.

60.720 Manager Cooperation in Related Efforts

The States may undertake or award other contracts for additional or related work, and the Manager shall fully cooperate with such other contractors and State employees and carefully fit the Manager's own work with such additional work. The Manager shall not commit or permit any act which will interfere with the performance of work by another contractor or by employees of the State of Kentucky. This clause shall be included in the contracts of all contractors with whom this Manager will be required to cooperate. The Cabinet shall equitably enforce this clause as to all contractors, to prevent any imposition of unreasonable burdens on any contractor.

60.800 Employment Practices

The Manager shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age (except as provided by law), marital status, political affiliations, or disability. The Manager shall take affirmative action to ensure that employees, as well as applicants for employment, are treated without discrimination because of their race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age (except as provided by law), marital status, political affiliation, or disability. Such action shall include, but is not limited to, the following: employment, promotion, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Manager agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provision of this clause.

The Manager shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Manager, state that all qualified applicants shall receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age (except as provided by law), marital status, political affiliation, or disability, except where it relates to a bona fide occupational qualification.

The Manager shall comply with the nondiscrimination clause contained in Federal Executive Order 11246, as amended by Federal Executive Order 11375, relative to Equal Employment Opportunity for all persons without regard to race, color, sex, or national origin, and the implementation rules and regulations prescribed by the Secretary of Labor and with Title 41, Code of Federal Regulations, Chapter 60. The Manager shall comply with related Commonwealth of Kentucky and State of Tennessee laws and regulations.

The Manager shall comply with regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor of the United States in Title 20, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 741, pursuant to the provisions of Executive Order 11748 and the Federal Rehabilitation Act of 1973.

The Manager shall comply with the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and any amendments thereto, and the rules and regulations there under, and Section 504 of Title V of the Vocational Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended by the Kentucky Civil Rights Act and the ADA.

60.810 Conflicts of Interest

No official or employee of the States and no other public official of Kentucky or the Federal Government who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of the project shall, prior to the completion of the project, voluntarily acquire any personal interest, direct or indirect in this contract or proposed contract.

The Manager shall insure that it complies with any state of Kentucky or federal law relating to conflicts of interest, including but not limited to, KRS Chapter 11A and KRS 45A.340.

60.900 Conformance with State and Federal Laws

The contract is subject to all applicable state and federal laws.

61.000 Permits, Licenses, Taxes and State Registration

The Manager shall procure all necessary permits and licenses and abide by all applicable laws, regulations, and ordinances of the United States, the Commonwealth of Kentucky and any political subdivision in which the work under this Contract is performed.

The Manager shall furnish certification of authority to conduct business in the Commonwealth of Kentucky as a condition of contract award. Such registration is obtained from the Office of the Secretary of State, which provides the certification thereof. However, the prospective Manager need not be registered as a prerequisite for responding to the Request for Proposal.

The Manager shall pay any sales, use, and personal property taxes arising out of this contract and the transactions contemplated thereby. Any other taxes levied upon this contract, the transactions, or the equipment or services delivered pursuant hereto shall be the responsibility of the Manager.

The Manager shall locate an office within the Commonwealth of Kentucky with appropriate staff and local or toll free telephone access to the Department of Highways Frankfort offices within the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet. KYTC Highway District 5 personnel can utilize the local access telephone number for the TRIMARC Facility.

61.100 Rights and Remedies

The rights and remedies of the Cabinet provided in Section 60 shall not be exclusive, and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this contract.

61.200 Waiver

No covenant, condition, duty, obligation, or undertaking contained in, or made a part of, the contract shall be waived except by the written agreement of the parties, and forbearance or indulgence in any other form or manner by either party in any regard whatsoever shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant, condition, duty, obligation, or undertaking to be kept, performed, or discharged by the party to which the same may apply; and until complete performance or satisfaction of all such covenants, conditions, duties, obligations, and undertakings, and other party shall have the right to invoke any remedy available under law or equity, notwithstanding any such forbearance or indulgence.

Any consent by any party to, waiver of, a failure by the other, whether express or implied, shall not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse for any other different or subsequent failure.

61.300 Assurances Before the Breach

If documentation, training, or other deliverables due under the contract resulting from this Request for proposal are not to the satisfaction of the Cabinet, the Manager is to be prepared to deliver assurances in the form of additional Manager resources to the project in order to complete the deliverable to the satisfaction of the Cabinet and to demonstrate that other major schedules shall not be affected. The quantity and quality of such additional resources is at the discretion of the Cabinet and failure to comply is subject to the provisions of termination as specified herein.

61.400 Insurance

The Manager shall provide public liability, property damage and Workers' Compensation insurance, insuring as they may appear, the interest of all parties of agreement against any and all claims which may arise out of Manager Operations under the terms of the contract. The Manager shall obtain the insurance from an insurance company licensed to do business in Kentucky. The terms of this insurance subsection apply to all subcontractors.

The Manager shall furnish to the Cabinet a certificate(s) evidencing that such insurance is in effect, for what amounts, and applicable policy numbers and expiration dates, within fourteen (14) days of contract signing.

The Manager shall carry the following insurance in addition to the insurance required by law:

- Manager's Public Liability Insurance not less than \$1,000,000.00 for the damages arising out of bodily injuries to or death to one person. Not less than \$1,000,000.00 for damages arising out of bodily injuries to or death to two or more persons.
- Manager's Property Damages Liability Insurance, not less than \$500,000.00 for all damages arising out of injury or destruction of property in any one accident. Not less than \$1,000,000.00 for all damages during the policy period.
- Manager's Protective Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance. The Manager shall furnish evidence with respect to operations performed for the Manager by subcontractors that the subcontractor carries in its own behalf for the above stipulated amounts.
- The insurance required above must be evidenced by a Certificate of Insurance and this Certificate of Insurance must contain one of the following statements:

Α.	"policy contains no deductible clauses."	
В.	"policy contains a(amount)	deductible property damage
	,	n and collect the deductible from the

- Workmen's Compensation Insurance. In compliance with KRS 176.085, the Manager shall furnish evidence of coverage of all Manager employees or give evidence of selfinsurance by submitting a copy of a certificate issued by the Workmen's Compensation Board.
- Unemployment Compensation Insurance. In compliance with KRS 176.085, the Manager shall furnish evidence of coverage of all Manager employees or give evidence of self-insurance.
- Umbrella Coverage. In addition to the primary coverages listed in this section, the Manager shall maintain an umbrella or excess liability policy of not less than \$5,000,000 for any one occurrence and subject to the same aggregate over the public and property damage liability coverages. The umbrella coverage is subject to approval as to form and amount of self-insured retention.

Upon the event of cancellation of any insurance coverage, the Manager shall immediately notify the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet of such cancellation. The Manager shall provide the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet with written notice at least ten (10) days prior to any change in the insurance required under this subsection.

61.500 Prime Manager Responsibility, Sub-Contractors

Any contract that may result from this Request for proposal shall specify that the Manager is responsible for the fulfillment of the contract with the Cabinet. The person proposed as the TRIMARC Manager should be designated in the proposal. The Manager will be responsible for the entire contract performance whether or not subcontractors are used.

The response or proposal should clearly explain and identify all firms and entities that are proposed to be a part of the project. All firms participating in the operation and maintenance of the facility should be indicated including the functions, responsibilities, and work tasks they will be performing.

The proposal will also define the organizational structure for operating the facility. It must be indicated whether any operations will be subcontracted, joint ventured, or franchised.

Managers submitting as a joint venture, contractor/subcontractor, partnership, or other form of association shall include the organization of each individual company within the group. The legal document under which the associates operate being Letter of Commitment and Letters of Agreement between and among team members, plus a description of the role that each company will play in the overall operation must be submitted. All subcontracted services must be clearly identified in terms of contractual arrangement, as well as name and address of company.

Unless provided for in the contract, no contract shall be made by the Manager with any other party for furnishing any of the work or services herein contracted for without notification of the Cabinet. This provision will not be taken as requiring the notification of contracts of employment between the Manager and personnel for services there under.

All references in this Request for proposal to the Manager should be construed to encompass both the Manager and the subcontractor.

The proposal must also include copies of any agreements to be executed between the Manager and any subcontractors in the event of contract award.

61.510 Affiliation

If any affiliate (as hereinafter defined) of the Manager shall take any action which, if done by the Manager, would constitute a breach of this agreement, the same shall be deemed a breach by such party with like legal effect. "Affiliate" shall mean a "parent," subsidiary, or other company controlling, controlled by or in common control with a party.

61.600 Assignment

The Manager shall not assign the contract in whole or in part or any payment arising there from without the prior written consent of the Cabinet. Any purported assignment shall be void.

61.700 Hold Harmless

The Manager agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Cabinet, its officers, agents, and employees from:

- any claims or losses for service rendered by the Manager, person, or firm performing or supplying services, materials, or supplies in connection with the performance of the contract;
- any claims or losses to any person or firm injured or damaged by the erroneous or negligent acts of the Manager, its officers or employees in the performance of the contract;
- any claims or losses resulting to any person or firm injured or damaged by the Manager, its officers or employees by the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, performance, use, or disposition of any data processed under the contract in a manner not authorized by the contract, or by Federal or Commonwealth of Kentucky regulations or statutes;
- any failure of the Manager, its officer or employees to observe Kentucky laws, including but not limited to labor laws and minimum wage laws; and
- any environmental actions by any individual or government agency in accordance with KRS Chapter 224.

61.710 Patent or Copyright Infringement

The Manager, at its own expense, will defend any claim or suit which may be brought against the States for the infringement of United States patents or copyrights arising from the Manager's or States' use of any equipment, materials, or information prepared or developed in connection with performance of the contract and in any suit will satisfy any final judgment for such infringement. The Cabinet will give the Manager written notices of such claim or suit and full right and opportunity to conduct the defense thereof, together with full information and all reasonable cooperation.

If principles of government or public law are involved, the Cabinet may participate in the defense of any such action, but no costs or expenses shall be incurred for the account of the Manager and without the Manager's written consent. If, in the Manager's opinion, the equipment, materials, or information mentioned in the paragraphs above is likely to or does become the subject of a claim of infringement of a United States patent or copyright, then without diminishing the Manager's obligation to satisfy any final award, the Manager may, with the Cabinet's written consent, substitute other equally suitable equipment, materials, and information, or at the Manager's option and expense, obtain the right of the Cabinet to continue the use of such equipment, materials, and information.

The Cabinet shall retain the ownership and authority over all data collected by the Manager during completion of the above Tasks, including the ability to disclose and share data with

outside parties as desired. The Manager shall not reproduce or copy data without permission from the Cabinet.

61.720 Notice of Infringement

The Manager shall report to the Cabinet promptly and in reasonable detail, each notice or claim of patent or copyright infringement based on the performance of this contract of which the Manager has knowledge.

61.730 Guarantee of Authority

The Manager warrants that it has the full power and authority to grant the right herein granted without the consent of any other person and will indemnify and hold the States harmless from and against any loss, cost, liability, and expense (including reasonable counsel fees) arising out of any breach or claimed breach of this warranty. During the pendency of any claim against the Manager or the States with respect to the Manager's ownership and/or authority, the Cabinet may withhold payment of any sums otherwise required to be paid hereunder. Further, the Manager has the authority to guarantee that if any part of the TRIMARC system does not work, then the Manager will make it work.

61.740 Settlement of Claim

The Cabinet agrees that the Manager has the right to defend and the Manager agrees to defend at its own expense or at its option to settle any claim, suit or proceeding brought against the States on the issue of infringement of any United States patent or copyright or any product, or any part thereof, supplied by the Manager to the States under this agreement. The Manager agrees to pay, subject to the limitations hereinafter set forth in this paragraph, any final judgment entered against the States on such issue in any suit or proceeding defended by the Manager.

The Cabinet agrees that the Manager at its own sole option shall be relieved of the foregoing obligations unless the Cabinet notifies the Manager promptly, in writing, of any such claim, suit or proceeding, and at the Manager's expense gives the Manager proper and full information needed to settle and/or defend any such claim, suit or proceeding. If the product, or any part thereof, furnished by the Manager to the States becomes, or in the opinion of the Manager may become, the subject of any claim, suit or proceeding for infringement of any United States patent or copyright, or in the event of an adjudication that such product or part infringes any United States patent or copyright, or if the use, lease or sale of such product or part is enjoined, the Manager may, at its own option and expense:

- Procure for the Cabinet the right under such patent or copyright to use, lease or sell, as appropriate, such product or part;
- Replace such product or part with other products or parts suitable to the Cabinet; or
- Suitably modify such product or part.

The Manager shall have no liability for any infringement based upon:

- The combination of such product or part with any other product or part not furnished to the States by the Manager;
- The modification of such product or part unless such modification was made by the Manager; or
- The use of such product or part in a manner for which it was not designed.

The Manager shall not be liable for any cost, expense or compromise incurred or made by the States in conjunction with any issue of infringement without the Manager's prior written authorization. The foregoing states the entire warranty by the Manager and the exclusive remedy of the States with respect to any alleged patent infringement by such product or part.

61.800 Auditing, Accounting Availability and Access to Sites and Documents

The Manager must make available the books and allow for on-site inspections of the facilities and other items relating to the operation of the TRIMARC Facility. The Manager must also agree to furnish upon request to the Cabinet a copy of any work plan, documents, information, etc. being developed at any time during the period of the contract and which relates to the project either directly or indirectly.

The Manager shall keep the books, records and accounts of its operation under this contract agreement separate and apart from all other operations carried on by it and shall make any and all reports concerning the same to the Cabinet in such form and at such times as the Cabinet may require. The books, records and accounts relating to the operation under this contract agreement shall be kept in a form and manner satisfactory to the Cabinet. The Manager shall submit to the Cabinet, within ninety (90) days following the close of its fiscal year, an audited financial statement that includes at least a Balance Sheet and Revenue and Expense Statement during the Cabinet's fiscal year.

The Manager may elect to submit to the Cabinet copies of its Federal Income Tax Return and State Corporate Income Tax Return with reports as required above, in lieu of audited financial statements.

In the event the Manager is a partnership or a corporation, a statement disclosing all names and the addresses of the partners or stockholders owning more than five (5) percent interest or stock of any kind during the year shall be submitted upon request with the above required statements or reports. It is expressly understood and agreed by the parties hereto the Cabinet or its representatives shall be allowed access to all books, records and accounts relating to said operations including but not limited to, any reports or returns on file with the Kentucky Revenue Cabinet, at all times during the regular business hours and at a place convenient for that purpose.

61.900 Warranty

Failure of the Manager to fulfill any written commitment within the scope of the proposed contract shall render the Manager liable for services due the Cabinet under the terms of this Request for proposal. SEE TERMINATION.

62.000 Property of Kentucky

The Manager shall be responsible for the proper custody and care of any property owned by the Commonwealth of Kentucky and furnished for the Manager's use in connection with the performance of this contract. The Manager shall reimburse the State for its loss or damage, normal wear and tear excepted.

62.100 Warranty Against Brokers Fee

The Manager warrants that it has not employed any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Manager or a company regularly employed as its marketing agent, to solicit or secure this contract and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working solely for the Manager or a company regularly employed by the Manager as its marketing agent, any fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award of this contract. For breach or violation of this warranty, the Cabinet shall have the right to annul this contract without liability or, in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration, or otherwise recover the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage, brokerage fee, gifts, or contingent fee.

62.200 Attorney's Fees

In the event that either party deems it necessary to take legal action to enforce any provision of the contract, or in the event the Cabinet prevails, the Manager agrees to pay all expenses of such action. This shall include attorney's fees and costs at all states of litigation as set by the court or hearing officer.

62.300 Offer of Gratuities

By submission of a proposal, the Consultant certifies that no member of or delegate of Congress, nor any elected or appointed official or employee of the Commonwealth of Kentucky has or will benefit financially or materially from this procurement. Any contract arising from this procurement may be terminated by the Cabinet if it is determined that gratuities of any kind were either offered to or received by any of the aforementioned officials or employees from the Manager, its agent, or employee.

62.400 Contract Variations

If any provision of this contract, (including items incorporated by reference) is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both the Cabinet and the Manager shall be relieved of all obligations arising under such provision. If the remainder of the contract is capable of performance, it shall not be affected by such declaration or finding and shall be fully performed.

62.500 Operations Review

The Manager shall review its operations with the Cabinet quarterly and at such other times during the contract term hereof as the Cabinet may designate.

62.510 Emergency Closing of Facility

In the event of emergency, the Cabinet reserves the right to close or divert motorists away from the Facility when such action is, in the view of the Cabinet, in the best interest of its motorists. The Manager agrees that it shall not hold the Cabinet liable for any damages which might accrue because of such action by the Cabinet.

62.520 <u>Suspension of Operations</u>

In the event of a partial destruction by fire or other hazard of any portion of the TRIMARC Facility normally used by the Manager, the Manager will have complete discretion as to whether to continue or suspend operations in the Facility or portion of the Facility affected for such period as is necessary for the Manager to repair the damaged premises. The Manager shall work to reopen the entire facility as quickly as is reasonably possible. The Manager shall contact the Chief District Engineer in the Cabinet's District Five Office immediately in the event of a suspension of operations.

62.530 Suspension of Payments

If and when operations are suspended under this section, all responsibilities and obligations of the Manager, as herein set forth, shall cease as to the facility area affected, only for the period of such suspension. The Cabinet shall not be responsible to the Manager for any damages resulting from such suspension as a result of the partial or total destruction of the facility.

62.600 Reporting of Incidents in the Facility

The Manager shall report any injury or property damage incident within four (4) hours to the Chief District Engineer in the Cabinet's District Five Office and the Central Office Program Manager. An incident resulting in a fatality should be reported to the Chief District Engineer at the Cabinet's District Five Office immediately. All questions from the media arising from any such incidents shall be referred to the Cabinet.

62.700 Utility Payment

The Manager shall be responsible for the payment of utilities, and will be reimbursed by the Cabinet.

62.800 Payment Schedule

- A. Management Fee The Fee shall be paid in 5% monthly in installments (one-twentieth) of fee per the Cost Proposal commencing November 1, 2016.
- B. Parts/Supplies The Manager shall pay for all inventory parts and associated supplies. The actual cost of these parts/supplies shall be billed to the Cabinet for reimbursement. The Cabinet will reimburse the Manager within thirty days of receipt of invoice.

SECTION 70 - PROCUREMENT

70.000 Approach

The Cabinet hereby waives the formal determination of eligibility to bid (KRS 176.140). The procurement process shall provide for the evaluation of proposals from responsive, pre-qualified consultants, and the selection of the winning proposal in accordance with State Statutes and Administrative Regulations (See Section 10.610).

70.100 Process

Each Consultant providing a Proposal shall provide the following:

- 1. A Proposal containing the information required herein (Original and six copies);
- 2. A Plan as required in Section 10.740 in a separate binder (Original and ten copies);
- 3. A cost Proposal in a separate binder or folder (Original and six copies); and
- 4. Information that the Consultant has deemed to be proprietary in nature in accordance with Section 70.530 (Original and six copies).

The Selection Committee will review Items 1, 2 and 4 as listed above. There will be a concurrent review of Item 2 by the KYTC's Office for Business and Occupational Development. The Evaluation Process will be conducted as set forth in Section 90 (Evaluation Process).

70.200 Rules of Procurement

To facilitate this procurement, various rules have been established and are described in the following paragraphs.

70.201 Campaign Finance Law Statement Pursuant to KRS 45A.110 and KRS 45A.115

A Commonwealth of Kentucky sworn statement regarding campaign financing laws must be completed and signed by an authorized agent of the Consultant's company.

70.202 Reminder to Former State Employees

KRS 11A is referenced as a reminder to former state employees seeking to do business with the state government. It should be thoroughly reviewed by any former state employees that will be involved with this contract.

70.203 Executive Branch Code of Ethics

Additionally, Consultants are reminded of KRS Chapters 11A and 45A concerning conflicts of interest and the acceptance of gifts by state employees and related to Conflicts of Interest regarding Contractors Seeking to Sell Goods or Services to the Executive Branch of State Government.

70.210 No Contingent Fees

No person or selling agency shall be employed or retained or given anything of monetary value to solicit or secure this contract, excepting bona fide employees of the Consultant or bona fide established commercial or selling agencies maintained by the Consultant for the purpose of securing business. For breach or violation of this provision, the Cabinet shall have the right to reject the proposal, annul the contract without liability, or, at its discretion, deduct from the contract price or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee or other benefit.

70.300 Restrictions on Communications with Commonwealth Staff

From the issue date of this Request for Proposal until a Manager is selected and selection is announced, Consultants are not allowed to communicate with any Commonwealth staff concerning this Request for Proposal except for written questions to those specified.

For violation of this provision, the Cabinet shall reserve the right to reject the proposal.

In order to provide equal treatment to all Consultants, questions should be submitted in writing pursuant to Section 10.300. Written responses to these questions shall be distributed to all Consultants.

This provision does not preclude Consultants who presently hold contracts with the States from communicating with state agencies regarding existing contracts.

70.400 Request for Proposal Addenda

Addenda to this Request for proposal may be necessary prior to the closing date and will be furnished by mail; e-mail, and/or the Division of Professional Services Website to all pre-qualified Consultants eligible to submit Proposals if prior to receipt date, and to all Consultants determined to be susceptible for award if after receipt date.

70.500 Proposal Preparation

The Consultant shall follow Section 80, and any other pertinent sections of the Request for proposal, in the preparation of the proposal. Failure to provide any of the information required by this Request for proposal may result in the proposal being excluded from further evaluation.

70.510 Cost of Preparing Proposal

The cost of developing the proposal is solely the responsibility of each individual Consultant. The Commonwealth shall not provide reimbursement for such costs. Any costs associated with any oral presentation to the Commonwealth shall be the responsibility of each individual Consultant and shall in no way be billable to the States.

70.520 <u>Disposition of Proposals</u>

All proposals become the property of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. The successful proposal shall be incorporated by reference into the resulting contract.

70.530 Consultant Response and Proprietary Information

The Request for proposal specifies the format, required information, and general content for each proposal submitted in response to this Request for proposal. The States shall not disclose any portion of any proposal prior to contract award to anyone outside the States, representatives of the federal government, if required, and the members of the Selection Committee. After a contract is awarded in whole or in part, the States shall have the right to duplicate, use, or disclose all proposal data submitted by Consultants in response to this Request for proposal as a matter of public record. Although the States recognize the Consultant's possible interest in preserving selected data which may be part of a proposal, the States must treat such information as provided by the Consultant pursuant to Kentucky's Open Records Act, KRS 61.870 et esq.

Information areas which normally might be considered proprietary must be limited to: individual personnel data, customer references, selected financial data, formulae, and financial audits, which if disclosed should permit an unfair advantage to competitors. If a proposal contains information in these areas that a Consultant declares proprietary in nature and not available for public disclosure, each sheet containing such information must be clearly designated as proprietary at the top and bottom of the page and must be submitted under separate cover marked "PROPRIETARY DATA". Proposals containing information declared by a Consultant to be proprietary, either in whole or in part, outside the areas listed above, shall be deemed unresponsive to the Request for proposal and shall be rejected.

The States shall have the right to use all ideas, or adaptations of those ideas, contained in any proposal received in response to this Request for proposal. Selection or rejection of the proposal shall not affect this right.

70.540 Proposal Addenda and Rules for Withdrawal

Prior to the date specified for receipt of Proposals, a submitted proposal may be withdrawn by submitting a written request for its withdrawal to the Director of the Division of Professional Services (address in Subsection 10.300 paragraph 2.) as specified in Subsection 70.550, paragraph 4.

The Commonwealth shall accept addenda, revisions, or alterations to its proposal from any Consultant until c/o/b on the due date. The Commonwealth shall not accept any unsolicited addenda, revisions, or alterations to any proposal after the c/o/b on the due date. If the Commonwealth issues an addendum to the Request for Proposal after c/o/b on the due date, then any Consultant may respond. A Consultant's response shall precisely respond to the contents of the Commonwealth's addendum.

The Commonwealth reserves the right to request clarification or additional information. Unless requested by the Commonwealth, the Commonwealth may not accept any addenda, revisions, or alterations to proposals after the proposal due date.

Any submitted proposal shall remain a valid proposal for 120 days after the proposal due date set forth in Subsection 70.550, paragraph 2.

70.550 Proposal Submission Requirements

A Consultant may submit <u>only</u> one proposal. The format and content are specified in Section 80. Alternate proposals shall not be allowed. Each proposal shall be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise description of the Consultant's ability to meet the requirements of this Request for Proposal. Fancy bindings, colored displays or promotional materials shall receive no evaluation credit. Emphasis shall be on completeness and clarity of content. The Commonwealth retains the right to request, receive and consider additional information and clarifications throughout the evaluation process.

Consultants shall submit one (1) original and six (6) copies of the proposal (except for an original and ten copies of the Plan required pursuant to Section 10.740), under a single sealed cover and shall be received no later than **4:30 p.m., ET, on Wednesday, August 31, 2016**. The Cabinet shall reject any proposal received after 4:30 p.m. ET on August 31, 2016, and shall return it unopened to the vendor. The original Proposal shall be signed in blue ink in all locations requiring a signature by an authorized representative of the Consultant's firm to be considered. The requirements for the filing are identified in Section 70.100.

The Proposal shall be clear and concise, and provide the Selection Committee with an understanding of the Consultant's ability to undertake and complete the proposed work in a thorough manner. The proposal as identified in Item #1 of Section 70.100 should not exceed fifty (50) pages. Financial Statements and Resumes shall be enclosed at the rear of the binder and shall not count toward the fifty pages. A page is defined as an 8.5" by

11" or 11" by 17" sheet which contains text, pictures, graphs, charts, plan sheets, or any other graphics. An 11" by 17" sheet shall not contain only text but shall contain pictures, graphs, charts, plans, or other graphics. If an 11" by 17" sheet contains only text, it shall be counted as two pages. Any proposal which exceeds the fifty page limit shall receive a 5 point penalty per page over fifty.

The following Items will not be considered to be a part of the 50-Page Limitation:

<u>Section</u>	Page(s)	Excluded Items
80.110		Title Page
80.120		Table of Contents
10.740		DBE Firms and other Small Business Participation Plan
61.500		Agreements to be executed between the TRIMARC Manager and any Subcontractors
70.202		Statement regarding Campaign Finance Laws
70.550		Financial Statements and Resumes
70.900		Prior KRS Violations
80.154		Applicable Certifications regarding proposed staff

The proposals shall either be mailed or hand-delivered to:

Mr. Eric Pelfrey, P.E., Director Division of Professional Services Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 200 Mero Street, 3rd Floor Frankfort, Kentucky 40622

The outside cover of the package containing the proposal shall be marked:

Transportation Cabinet
Proposal for Management and Operation of TRIMARC
Name of Consultant
Address of Consultant

Any Consultant's addenda to its proposal shall be submitted in a manner consistent with Subsection 70.540, paragraph 2.

70.600 Acceptance of Proposals

All proposals properly submitted shall be accepted by the Cabinet. However, the Cabinet reserves the right to request necessary amendments which may become part of the Consultant's proposal; reject all proposals; reject any proposal that does not meet mandatory requirements; or cancel this Request for proposal, to the best interest of the Cabinet.

The Cabinet also reserves the right to waive minor irregularities in proposals providing such action is in the best interest of the Cabinet.

Where the Cabinet may waive minor irregularities, such waiver shall in no way modify the Request for proposal requirements or excuse the Consultant from full compliance with the Request for proposal specifications and other contract requirements if the Consultant is awarded the contract.

70.700 Protests

The Secretary of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet, or his designee, shall have authority to determine protests and other controversies of actual or prospective Consultants in connection with the solicitations or selection for award of a contract.

Any actual or prospective Consultant, who is aggrieved in connection with solicitation or selection for award of a contract, may file a protest with the Secretary of the Transportation Cabinet. A protest or notice of other controversy must be filed promptly, and in any event within two calendar weeks after such aggrieved person knows or should have known of the facts giving rise thereto. All protests or notices of other controversies must be in writing to:

Secretary Greg Thomas Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 200 Mero Street, 6th Floor Frankfort, Kentucky 40622

The Secretary of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet shall promptly issue a decision in writing. A copy of that decision shall be mailed or otherwise furnished to the aggrieved party and shall state the reasons for the action taken.

The decision by the Secretary of the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet shall be final and conclusive.

70.800 Equal Employment Opportunity Act

The Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1978 applies to all State government projects with an estimated value exceeding \$250,000. The Manager shall comply with all terms and conditions of the Act.

70.900 Manager Reports of Prior Violations of KRS Chapters 136, 139, 141, 337, 338, 341, and 342

Pursuant to 1994's Senate Bill 258, the Bidder/Offeror shall reveal to the Commonwealth, prior to this award of a contract, any final determination of a violation by the Manager within the previous five (5) year period of the provisions of KRS Chapters 136, 139, 141, 337, 338, 341, and 342.

For the purpose of complying with the provisions of Senate Bill 258, please list any final determination(s) of violation(s) of KRS Chapters 136, 139, 141, 337, 338, 341, and 342, which have been rendered against the Bidder or Offeror within the five (5) years preceding the award of this contract. There are three places that Consultants can check for open issues and resolutions. The Finance Cabinet has a Customer Resource Center (502-564-9666). A second is the Registry of Election Finance (502-573-2226). A third possible source is the KYTC's Office for Business and Occupational Development (502-564-3601).

Please include the date of the determination and the date agency issuing the determination.

KRS VIOLATION DATE STATE AGENCY

The Manager is further notified that 1994's Senate Bill 258 requires that for the duration of this contract, the Manager shall be in continuous compliance with the provisions of KRS Chapters 136, 139, 141, 337, 338, 341, and 342, which apply to the Manager's operations. Senate Bill 258, further provides that the Manager's failure to reveal a final determination of a violation of KRS Chapters 136, 139, 141, 337, 338, 341, and 342, or failure to comply with the above-cited statutes for the duration of the contract, shall be grounds for the Commonwealth's termination of the contract, and the Manager's disqualification from eligibility to bid or submit proposals to the Commonwealth for a period of two (2) years.

SECTION 80 - PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

80.000 INTRODUCTION

The proposal shall include information about the Manager's **Technical Expertise/Capacity** (including corporate and personnel experience), **Business Resource Capacity** (including the financial, capital, and administrative controls/policies), and **Business Approach** (including plans and procedures for accomplishing the services). The Manager is reminded of the requirements of KRS 176.150 in submitting information.

80.100 Proposal Contents

The proposal contents shall comply with the following subsections. (Please note that Section 10.805 requires that the portion of the Consultant's Response entitled: "Innovative Approaches for Engaging DBE Entities and Small Businesses" is to be in a separate notebook binder.)

80.110 Title Page

The Consultant on the title page shall state the proposal subject (Management and Operation of the TRIMARC Facility), the name of the Consultant, Kentucky address, telephone number, name of contact person, and the date of proposal submittal in response to this Request for Proposal. Points will not be awarded for fancy covers.

80.120 Table of Contents

The Consultant shall include in its proposal a clear identification of the material by section and page number. Each notebook shall have a Table of Contents.

80.130 Transmittal Letter

The transmittal letter shall be in the form of a standard business letter and shall be signed by an individual authorized to legally bind the Consultant. It shall include:

- A statement indicating whether the Consultant is a corporation in good standing or, if not a corporation, its type of legal entity;
- A statement identifying all addenda to this Request for proposal issued by the Cabinet and received by the Consultant. If no addenda have been received, a statement to that effect shall be included;
- A statement certifying that no personnel currently employed by, under contract with
 or in any way associated with the Department of Highways, Kentucky Transportation
 Cabinet, have participated in any activities relating to the preparation of the
 Consultant's proposal, except as provided for in the Request for Proposal.
- A statement specifying whether proprietary data has been included in the proposal. If so, a statement that the proprietary data has been properly marked is to be provided.
- An itemization of all materials and enclosures being forwarded collectively in response to this Request for Proposal;
- A statement that the proposal shall meet the specification/requirements set forth in the Request for Proposal, and/or a list of exceptions to the specifications/requirements in the Request for Proposal. The Cabinet reserves the right to reject any proposal containing such exceptions or to require modifications before acceptance;

- A statement that the Consultant's proposal shall remain valid until 120 days after the c/o/b on the proposal due date;
- A statement which acknowledges and agrees to all of the rights of the Cabinet including terms and conditions and all other rights and terms specified in this Request for Proposal;
- A statement identifying the name and telephone number of the individual the Cabinet should contact if additional information is required;
- A statement that the person signing this proposal certifies that he/she is the person in the Consultant's organization responsible for, or authorized to make, legally-binding decisions on behalf of the Consultant;
- A statement that the Consultant shall accept financial responsibility for all expenses incurred in preparing the Request for proposal; and
- A statement that the Consultant accepts Prime Manager responsibilities for all Management and Operation activities.

80.140 Executive Summary

The Executive Summary shall condense and highlight the contents of the proposal in such a way as to provide Cabinet management with a broad understanding of the entire proposal.

80.150 Technical Expertise/Capacity

This section shall contain information about the corporate background and experience for the Consultant including:

- Detailed background of the company;
- Corporate experience relevant to the proposed contract;
- A list of other current or recent projects that are the same or similar to this project.
- Key staff background and experience relevant to the proposed contract.
- Background and experience of subcontractors relevant to the proposed contract

(The purpose of this section is to assure that the Consultant has the corporate technical expertise and capacity necessary to provide the services required by the Cabinet.)

80.151 Corporate Background

The details of the background of the corporation, its size, and resources, shall cover:

- Date established;
- Ownership (public company, partnership, subsidiary, etc.). List all firms in the "Corporate Vertical Chain", both above and under the Consultant;
- Total number of Consultant full-time employees;
- Total number, by firm, of Sub-Contractor full-time employees;
- Total number, by firm, of any full-time employees in the Corporate Vertical Chain;
- Number of personnel engaged in providing operation and maintenance services;
- Number of personnel or full time equivalent (FTE) that will be assigned/employed by
 this project, including the background, experience, and resumes of key personnel who
 will be, or may be committed to any portion of the work in the project; and
- Primary services or products offered by the corporation.

80.152 Corporate Experience and Related Projects

The Consultant's proposal shall include detailed information regarding all previous projects similar to this Request for Proposal which the Consultant has successfully undertaken or completed. For each project, the Consultant shall provide a description of the work performed, the time period of the project, the contract cost and the customer reference (including name, current e-mail address, and **current** telephone number).

The Consultant shall identify from the above listing any related major projects currently being performed or completed within the past three (3) years, including all projects with the Commonwealth of Kentucky during this time period. The Consultant shall provide the following for each such project:

- Customer name(s);
- Customer reference (including current telephone number and e-mail address)
- Time period of contract;
- A brief statement of the scope of the project, indicating personnel requirements; and
- A list of any major contract disputes.

80.154 Proposed Project Staff

The Consultant shall provide proposed project staffing including TRIMARC Manager and other key staff assigned to the project and a proposed complete staffing organization for operation of the facility based upon the hours of operation specified in Section 20-100 (Scope of Work).

The purpose is to identify those individuals in the corporate structure that will have management and oversight responsibilities. Inclusive in the response shall be identification of all those individuals who will have management responsibilities at the site. Personnel resumes shall include:

- Experience attained and length of employment by the Consultant;
- Experience with government projects/agencies;
- Experience with managing, planning and development of projects the same or similar to the project required by this Request for proposal;
- Management expertise and background;
- All applicable certifications; and
- Names, positions, **current** telephone number, and e-mail address of persons who can give information on the individuals' experience and competence.

The description of experience must include specific responsibilities and number of years. Each project referenced in a resume should include both the customer name and the time period of the project, as well as a brief description of the project.

80.155 <u>Subcontractor Background and Experience</u>

The details of the background of the corporation, its size, and resources, shall cover: date established; ownership (public company, partnership, subsidiary, etc.); total number of full-time employees; number of personnel engaged in providing operation and maintenance services; number of personnel or full time equivalent (FTE) that will be assigned/employed by this project, including the background, experience, and resumes of key personnel who will be, or may be committed to any portion of the work in the project; and primary services or products offered by the corporation.

The details of the experience shall include information regarding previous projects similar to this Request for proposal which the subcontractors have successfully undertaken or completed. For each subcontractor, the Consultant shall provide a description of the work performed, the time period of the project, the contract cost and the customer reference (including name, address, and **current** telephone number).

80.160 Business Resource Capacity

This section is **Very Important** and shall contain information about the business resource capacity of the Consultant. This information shall include the corporate financial position, corporate administrative practices and controls, and ability to manage inventory. The Consultant shall provide a statement certifying that the firm has the financial stability and corporate capacity to enter into a contract of this scope with the Cabinet. The Consultant shall provide bank references including name, address, and current telephone number of the given bank. The Consultant shall provide in the proposal information concerning the financial status of the company and other pertinent facts relating to corporate and financial stability. These items must include the following:

- A list of other major projects currently being undertaken by the Consultant including the time remaining to implementation and the costs involved. Projects may be classified as "major" due to cost, complexity, criticality, or all three, and the determination is subjective;
- A discussion of how this project is to be financed both short term and long term;
- A list of other large recently completed projects and how they were financed;
- A discussion of credit rating for the last three (3) years. If bonds or debt have been rated, include name of rating agency and criteria used in the rating;
- An explanation of any outstanding lines of credit including the terms and the name of the lending institution(s); and
- A complete listing of any external consultants or partners that will be involved in submitting the proposal must be provided along with comparable financial information for each as requested above. External Consultants or partners are defined as a person or firm outside the Consultant's team who provides input into the drafting of and/or final preparation of the Proposal document(s). This could include anyone from an outside attorney to a financial analyst.

80.170 Business Approach

The Consultant shall describe in detail the business approach to managing and operating the TRIMARC facility and associated systems, including the critical success factors in implementing your approach. Identify and rank significant areas of risk that could result in failure of your approach. Explain how these risks will be managed or mitigated with your approach. Identify any hard-to-resource skills associated with the delivery of your approach. Explain how your approach addresses this issue. Discuss the key dependencies and requirements of your approach on other parties; including other vendors and both KYTC and INDOT. Discuss any assumptions and constraints on which you have based you approach. Discuss any creative funding alternatives or approaches that should be considered for Management and Operations. State your commitment to abide by all ITS Standards that apply to the Contract/Project.

80.180 Management and Operations Plan

The Plan shall address the Consultant's approach and include the following:

- (i). actions necessary for the proper functioning of the system (Operations);
- (ii). actions performed on an as needed basis (Response Maintenance);
- (iii). action necessary for the proper delivery of emergency services (Response Services);
- (iv). actions performed on a regularly scheduled basis (Preventative Maintenance);
- (v). actions invoked to correct a recurring problem (Design Modification); and
- (vi). resources allocated for the proper functioning of the system (Management).

The Plan must address the six items above and include a detailed task-by-task listing and a timetable identifying all major tasks and schedules. The Management and Operations Plan must incorporate both the startup schedule and the management and operations of the facility. This schedule shall cover:

- Kentucky Transportation Cabinet responsibilities
- Manager responsibilities
- Project startup milestones
- Management and Operations Plan
- Plan for the purchase of any equipment
- Target dates
- Training schedule for staff

The plan should include expected staffing requirements and qualifications, responsibilities and stationing of personnel, necessary equipment and vehicles, and steps required to ensure the safety of the Facility.

80.200 Cost Proposal

This section describes the requirements to be addressed by the Consultant in preparing the cost proposal. The Consultant shall propose a total price for services to fulfill the requirements of this Request for Proposal for two (2) years. This total shall include all costs, such as, but not limited to: travel, clerical, management, training, license fees, and other costs.

As indicated in Section 70.550, the Consultant shall enclose in a separate sealed envelope the proposed price for the two year service. This proposal shall contain a proposed price for Work Task (#1-4). For Work Task #5, the Consultant shall propose an hourly rate for Freeway Service Patrol Vehicles, multiplied by a maximum 6,500 hours per year, multiplied by two years. The Consultant will provide a total bid which is the sum of the two items above. The Consultant shall not include Specific Items within Work Task's #1-4 that refer to cost reimbursement. These items, as well as Work Tasks # 7,#8 and #9 will be on a

cost reimbursement basis and will be negotiated between the Cabinet and the Manager after selection. The Cabinet and the selected Consultant will negotiate the rates for Work Task #6. If not submitted, the Consultant's proposal shall be rejected. The Consultant may prepare its own form of submission, as long as it contains the total price for services. The Consultant shall sign and date in blue ink each page contained in this folder. If required signatures are not provided, the Consultant's proposal shall be rejected.

80.300 Summary of Proposal Material From Other Sections

This section describes the required material for proposal submittal listed in other sections of this Request for proposal. The section containing the description of each item is listed immediately after.

- Campaign Finance Law Statement pursuant to KRS 45A.110 and KRS 45A.115
- Prior violations of KRS Chapters 136, 139, 141, 337, 38, 341, and 342 (Note: There is no standard form for signing and notarizing this Item.)
- Startup schedule

SECTION 90 - EVALUATION PROCESS

90.000 Selection Process

The selection of the TRIMARC Manager will be a two-step process. The first step will be to short-list three (3) Consultants for interviews with the Selection Committee. In the event of a tie, four (4) Consultants may be invited for the interviews. This will be accomplished by the Selection Committee ranking the responses in accordance with Section 90.200.

90.100 Evaluation of Each Proposal

The Cabinet shall conduct a comprehensive, fair and impartial evaluation of proposals received in response to this Request for Proposal. Proposals shall be evaluated to determine if they are complete and whether they comply with the instructions to the Consultants contained in this Request for Proposal. Those proposals determined to be eligible for award (Responsive) shall be further evaluated.

Failure to comply with the instructions or submit a complete proposal may deem a proposal not eligible, except that the Cabinet reserves the right to waive minor irregularities. If the Cabinet waives minor administrative formalities, such waiver shall in no way modify the Request for Proposal requirements or excuse the Consultant from full compliance with the Request for Proposal specifications and other contract requirements if the Consultant is awarded the contract.

Any proposal that is incomplete or in which there are significant inconsistencies or inaccuracies may be rejected by the Cabinet. The Cabinet also reserves the right to reject all proposals.

90.110 Evaluation of Mandatory Requirements

The Selection Committee members shall evaluate and score each proposal. This evaluation shall be based on the information contained in the Consultant's proposal concerning the firm's technical expertise and capacity; the business resource capacity of the firm; the business approach the firm takes in solving the States business problem; and the proposed management and operations plan.

90.120 Evaluation Organization

A Selection Committee shall be established to evaluate, score, and recommend the submitted proposals. The Selection Committee shall have a minimum of five (5) members. Members of the Selection Committee may be appointed from outside the Kentucky Transportation Cabinet. The Cabinet reserves the right to alter the composition of the committee or to designate other staff to assist in the process. Other designated persons may act as observers during the evaluation or selection process. The Selection Committee shall be responsible for each proposal evaluation (including corporate and personal reference checks).

90.200 Evaluation Criteria

Proposals will be evaluated on the basis of the following criteria. A maximum of One Hundred (100) points shall be available for each proposal as follows:

- 1. Section 10.730 Equipment Mark-Up Percentage (Maximum of 10 Points)
- 2. Section 10.740 Innovative Approaches for Engaging DBE Firms, Minority-Owned Businesses, Small Businesses, and Recognized Minority Organizations

(Maximum of 10 Points)

- 3. Section 80.150 Technical Expertise/Capacity
 (Maximum of 15 Points)
- 4. Section 80.160 (Business Resource Capacity) and Section 80.170 (Business Approach)

(Maximum of 10 Points)

5. Section 80.180 Management and Operations Plan (Maximum of 15 Points)

- 6. Sections 80.152 (Corporate Experience and Related Projects), and 80.154 (Proposed Project Staff) Relative experience, capabilities and expertise of Consultant Team while performing the Management and Operations responsibilities in a metropolitan area Traffic Management Center (of similar size or larger than TRIMARC), and the Team's ability to bring innovation to KYTC projects (Maximum of 28 Points)
- 7. Project approach and proposed procedures to accomplish the services to be provided under this Contract

(Maximum of 10 Points)

8. Consultant's Kentucky Office where 75% - 100% of the work is to be performed.

(2 Points)

Consultant's Kentucky Office where 26% - 74% of the work is to be performed.

(1 Point)

Thus, Consultants can receive a Maximum of One Hundred (100) Points.

90.201 Evaluation Details

The Cabinet shall evaluate the key personnel experience, corporate qualifications, corporate resources, and financial position of the Consultant. The evaluation shall pay particular attention to experience in management and operations of systems and emergency response.

Company references shall be checked and consideration given based on the degree of success on projects with requirements similar to those being proposed in this Request for proposal.

The financial health of the Consultants shall be considered. Independent financial reports shall be obtained; however, audited financial statements may be included with the proposal to ensure maximal consideration in this category.

90.202 Project/Key Personnel

An evaluation of the Consultant's understanding of the level of staffing required to complete the scope of work and evaluation of the qualifications of the Consultant's proposed staff shall be conducted. The evaluation of the proposed TRIMARC Project Manager and other personnel shall focus on their experience in operations, maintenance, and emergency response. The evaluation shall include all project personnel based upon the collective experience and capabilities of personnel proposed for the Project Manager's team, as well as upon the overall experience and capabilities of specific staff proposed to perform specific tasks.

90.203 Startup Schedule

An evaluation of the Consultant's understanding of the tasks that need to be implemented between the Award and the Notice to Proceed shall be conducted. Elements of the Startup Schedule shall include but are not limited to: training for the staff covering both proper certifications, familiarization with project equipment; development of specifications and procedures, and development of plans required by this Request for Proposal.

90.204 Management and Operations Plan

An evaluation of the Consultant's Plan for the continued safe and efficient management and operations of the facility shall be conducted. This will include, but not be limited to: the Consultant's approach to operating and maintaining the facility; expected staffing requirements, including responsibilities, qualifications, and stationing; necessary equipment and vehicles; and safety requirements for the TRIMARC facility.

90.205 <u>Corporate Administrative</u>

An evaluation of the Consultant's understanding of the necessary administrative policies and controls that must be in place to insure the proper execution of the project will be conducted.

90.210 Individual Committee Member's Score for Each Proposal

The individual members of the Selection Committee shall evaluate and tabulate the total score as indicated in Section 90.200 for each proposal.

90.300 Interview Process

Ground Rules for the interviews are as follow:

- 1. Combined attendance for the interviews by Consultant and Sub-Contractor Personnel shall not exceed four persons.
- 2. The proposed Project Manager will make the presentation. The Project Manager must be the primary responder for questions asked of the Team, but may direct questions to other members of the Team. However, this should be avoided except where the Team member has special expertise.
- 3. The total interview shall not exceed thirty minutes.
- 4. Any power-point presentation shall not exceed ten (10) minutes.
- 5. The ranking member of the Consultant team shall use the last three to five minutes to sum up the firm's commitment to the project.
- 6. The order of presentation shall be determined by lot. Thirty (30) minutes will be scheduled between presentations for set-up and take-down of power point equipment and/or displays. A consultant should not infringe on another consultant's time.

90.400 Final Selection Process

Following the interviews, the Selection Committee will review the Folder containing the Cost Proposal, and select the successful Consultant based upon the Oral Interviews and the proposed price. In the event that no Consultant receives a majority of the Selection Committee vote, the Consultant with the lower proposed price between/among the top ranked Consultant Presentations shall be ranked above any others with which it has tied.

90.500 Selection Committee Members

Tina Swansegar, User Division Jon Wilcoxson, User Division Kevin Sandefur, P.E., Secretary's Pool Jill Asher, P.E., Secretary's Pool Vacant, Governor's Pool

APPENDIX A

The following tables list the known field items. Additional items are to be documented and an updated list provided.

DISTRICT 1 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D1	CCTV01001	I-24MP9	Cellular	37.01623300	-88.36814800	Axis 232D
D1	CCTV01002	I-24 MP 7 @ US62	Cellular	37.05832793	-88.65494728	Axis 232D
D1	CCTV01003	I-24 MP 7.5 @ US 45 Lone Oak Rd.	Cellular	37.05223165	-88.65039825	Axis P5532E
D1	CCTV01004	I-24 MP 4@ US 60	Cellular	37.04688000	-88.40834200	Axis 232D
D1	CCTV01005	I-24 MP 3@ KY 305	Cellular	37.05882200	-88.41314400	Axis 232D

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D1	DMS01001	I-24 MP 9	Daktronics Side Mount	9	West Bound
D1	DMS01002	I-24 MP 7 @ US62	Daktronics Side Mount	5.3	West Bound
D1	DMS01003	I-24 MP 3@ KY 305	Daktronics Overhead	3	East Bound

DISTRICT 2 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D2	CCTV02001	I-24 MP 90	Cellular	36.64867502	-87.35085726	Axis 232D
D2	CCTV02002	US 41 Gate 7 for DMS Sign Camera	Cellular	36.67801362	-87.44735241	Axis 232D
D2	CCTV02003	US41 Gate 7 Fort Campbell Entrance	Cellular	36.67653362	-87.44692326	Axis 232D
D2	CCTV02004	US 41 & KY 911 Intersection	Cellular	36.66514870	-87.44287848	Axis 232D
D2	CCTV02005	US 41 Gate 5 Fort Campbell Entrance	Cellular	36.66077672	-87.44238496	Axis 232D
D2	CCTV02006	US 41 @ State Line Rd	Cellular	36.64096630	-87.43602812	Axis 232D
D2	CCTV02007	US 41 Gate 4 Fort Campbell Entrance	Cellular	36.64452592	-87.43718147	Axis 232D
D2	CCTV02008	KY 911 DMS Sign Camera	Cellular	36.66541549	-87.44070053	Axis P5532-E
D2	CCTV02009	US 41 & I-24 Overpass	Cellular	36.70419290	-87.45509863	Axis P5532-E
D2	CCTV02010	US 41 & Pennyrile Overpass	Cellular	36.83182121	-87.47286558	Axis P5532-E

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D2	DMS02001	I-24 MP 90	Daktronics Overhead	90	Westbound
D2	DMS02002	US 41 Gate 7 for DMS Sign Camera	Daktronics Side Mount	2.8	Southbound
D2	DMS02003	KY 911 DMS Sign Camera	Daktronics Side Mount	0.1	Westbound

DISTRICT 3 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D3	CCTV03001	I-65 MP 17	Cellular	36.87250000	-86.44817000	Axis P5532-E
D3	CCTV03002	I-65 MP 50	Cellular	37.12137000	-86.00705000	Axis 232D
D3	CCTV03003	I-65 MP 32	Cellular	37.01453000	-86.28570000	Axis 232D
D3	CCTV03004	I-65 MP 36	Cellular	37.03932000	-86.22566000	Axis 232D
D3	CCTV03005	Natcher Parkway MP 5	Cellular	36.95387000	-86.49671000	Axis 232D
D3	CCTV03006	I-65 @ 234	Cellular	36.97742000	-86.39170000	Axis 241SfHoney Well
D3	CCTV03007	KY 446 @ US 31W	Cellular	37.00855000	-86.37676000	Axis 241SfHoney Well
D3	CCTV03008	Louie B Nunn @ MP 3	Cellular	37.03713000	-86.05878000	Axis 232D
D3	CCTV03009	US 31W MP 7	Cellular	36.91903000	-86.50375000	Axis 232D
D3	CCTV03010	KY 231 @ Natcher MP129	Cellular	36.89419784	-86.37789130	Axis P5532-E
D3	CCTV03011	I–65 @ Exit 22 (US231) I– 65 Northbound MP22.3	Cellular	36.93326	-86.41758	Axis P5532-E

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D3	DMS03001	I-65 MP 17	Daktronics Overhead	17	North Bound
D3	DMS03002	I-65 MP 50	Daktronics Side Mount	50	South Bound
D3	DMS03003	I-65 MP 32	Daktronics Overhead	32	South Bound
D3	DMS03004	I-65 MP 36	Daktronics Side Mount	36	North Bound
D3	DMS03005	Natcher Parkway MP 5	Daktronics Side Mount	5	South Bound
D3	DMS03006	KY 446 @ US 31W	Daktronics Side Mount	0	East Bound
D3	DMS03007	Louie B Nunn @ MP 3	Daktronics Side Mount	3	West Bound
D3	DMS03008	US 31W MP 7	Daktronics Side Mount	7	North Bound
D3	DMS03009	KY 231 @ Natcher	Skyline Side mount Cellular	5.4	North Bound

DISTRICT 4 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D4	CCTV04001	I-65 MP 107	T1	37.87192	-85.70411	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04002	I–65 Bluegrass Parkway	Cellular	37.70229	-85.83312	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04003	I-65 MP 92.6	T1	37.69209	-85.84012	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04004	I-65 MP 92.4	T1	37.69196	-85.8413	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04005	I–65 Western Kentucky Parkway	Cellular	37.67370	-85.84936	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04006	I–65 MP 89.2	T1	37.64781	-85.85793	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04007	I–65 MP 82.8	T1	37.55403	-85.87815	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04008	I–65 MP 73.9	T1	37.42621	-85.88253	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04009	Simpson County MP2	T1	36.64597	-86.56870	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D4	CCTV04010	Western Kentucky Parkway MP129	Cellular	37.61907	-85.95477	Axis 232D
D4	CCTV04011	Bluegrass Parkway Eastbound MP18.5	Cellular	37.77728	-85.52121	Axis P5532-E

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D4	DMS04001	I-65 MP 107	Skyline Overhead	107	South Bound
D4	DMS04002	I-65 MP 92.6	Skyline Overhead	92.6	North Bound
D4	DMS04003	I-65 MP 92.4	Skyline Overhead	92.4	South Bound
D4	DMS04004	I-65 MP 89.2	Skyline Overhead	89.2	South Bound
D4	DMS04005	I-65 MP 73.9	Skyline Overhead	73.9	North Bound
D4	DMS04006	Simpson County	Skyline Overhead	.8	North Bound
D4	DMS04007	Western Kentucky Parkway MP129	Daktronics Sidemount	129	East Bound

Includes cabinets and pull boxes.

Note: LFCs are no longer included as they have either been abandoned or transferred to KYTC "Planning Division".

DISTRICT 5 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D5	CCTV05001	I–65 next to Crittenden Dr.	DSL	38.20783333	-85.75193611	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05002	I–65 adj. Arthur Street	U-verse	38.22438333	-85.75085833	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05003	I–65 at St. Catherine	T1	38.23308611	-85.75058611	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05004	I–65 over E. M. Ali Blvd.	T1	38.25011667	-85.75191389	Honeywell
D5*	CCTV05005	I–65 at Spaghetti Junction	T1	38.25984722	-85.74090000	Honeywell
D5*	CCTV05006	I–64 adj. Adams St.	DSL	38.26075278	-85.73250556	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05007	I–71 at Mile 11	DSL	38.32726000	-85.54730400	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05008	I–71 at Barbour Lane	DSL	38.30133300	-85.60834900	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05009	I–65 adj. Fairground Rd.	DSL	38.20265278	-85.73688056	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05010	I-65 at I-264	T1	38.18979444	-85.72845000	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05011	I–264 at Freedom Way	U-verse	38.19042778	-85.73809167	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05012	I–264 at Newburg Rd.	DSL	38.20163611	-85.68878889	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05013	I–65 at Fern Valley Rd.	56K	38.15773611	-85.71997500	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05016	I–64 at 39th Street	U-verse	38.27495833	-85.81267778	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05017	I-64 at 9th Street	Hard wired	38.25864167	-85.76530833	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05018	I–64 at 3rd St. Exit	DSL	38.25858611	-85.74497778	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05019	I–64 at Mellwood Ave.	56K	38.25615833	-85.72117500	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05020	I–64 at Grinstead Dr.	U-verse	38.24755000	-85.70058056	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05021	I–71 at Edith Rd.	56K	38.26420833	-85.71477222	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05022	I–71 at Zorn Ave	56K	38.27461944	-85.69772500	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05023	I−71 at Indian Hills Ave.	U–verse	38.28618611	-85.67926389	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05027	I-64 West of Oxmoor Farm Overpass	DSL	38.23326700	-85.60882800	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05028	I–64 at 22nd St.	U-verse	38.26655278	-85.77965000	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05029	I-64 at I-264	T1	38.23861389	-85.62611111	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05030	I–64 at Oxmoor Farm Rd.	DSL	38.22963889	-85.59753333	Honeywell

	1		ı	1		1
D5	CCTV05031	I–64 at Hurstbourne Ln.	DSL	38.22308056	-85.57797500	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05032	I-65 at I-265	U-verse	38.11450278	-85.70087222	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05033	I–65 at Outer Loop	56K	38.13688611	-85.70589167	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05034	I–65 at Grade Lane	56K	38.17804444	-85.71986944	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05035	I–264 at Dixie Hwy.	U-verse	38.18524222	-85.81250833	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05036	I–264 at Taylor Blvd.	56K	38.18934722	-85.78098056	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05037	I–264 at Poplar Level	56K	38.19553889	-85.70843611	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05038	I-264 at I-71	DSL	38.28508333	-85.64190556	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05039	I-71 at I-264	56K	38.29163889	-85.65062500	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05040	I-71 N. of I-264	56K	38.29224444	-85.63996667	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05041	I-64 E. of Cochran Hill Tunnel	U-verse	38.24228611	-85.68467222	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05042	I-64 at Cannons Ln.	56K	38.23603333	-85.65805556	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05043	I–64 at Breckenridge Ln.	56K	38.23575000	-85.64170833	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05044	I–64 at Blankenbaker Ln.	56K	38.22430278	-85.53945278	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05045	I-64W.ofI-265	DSL	38.22308056	-85.50772778	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05046	I-265 at I-64	DSL	38.22423889	-85.50578056	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05047	I-64 at English Station Rd.	56K	38.22205833	-85.49391111	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05048	I-64 at Echo Trail	56K	38.22151389	-85.46000833	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05049	I–64 at Clark Station	56K	38.21820556	-85.41603611	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05050	I–64 at Jeff.fShelby Co. Line	56K	38.21703333	-85.40785000	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05051	I-71 at I-265	DSL	38.31317500	-85.58443056	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05052	I–71 at Frankfort Ave	DSL	38.26222778	-85.72378333	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05053	I–264 West of Dixie, East of Crums Ln	56K	38.18804167	-85.82948056	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05054	I−264 at Crums Ln.	56K	38.19539444	-85.82885833	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05055	I–264 at Cane Run Rd.	U-verse	38.20623056	-85.82758056	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05056	I−264 at Bells Ln.	56K	38.22099444	-85.82205556	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05057	I−264 at Virginia Ave.fDumesnil St.	U-verse	38.24093889	-85.81510000	Honeywell
				•		

D5	CCTV05058	I−264 at River Park Dr.	U-verse	38.25393611	-85.80572500	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05059	I−264 at Bank St.	U-verse	38.26743056	-85.80747778	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05060	I-64 at I-264	U-verse	38.27690278	-85.80650278	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05061	I−264 at Westport Rd.	56K	38.26465000	-85.62340000	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05062	2nd St. at KFC Yum! Center	WirelessfFiber	38.25829200	-85.75426700	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05063	I–64 at Frazier Museum	WirelessfFiber	38.25816667	-85.76483333	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05070	I–65 near M. Ali Exit	WirelessfFiber	38.24930000	-85.74786000	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05071	I–71 North of I–265	DSL	38.33069074	-85.54088115	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05072	I–264 at Brownsboro Road	DSL	38.27980554	-85.63588500	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05073	I–264 at Shelbyville Road	DSL	38.25178830	-85.61842918	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05074	I–264 at Taylorsville Road	DSL	38.22162779	-85.65011144	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05075	I–264 at Bardstown Road	U-verse	38.21033200	-85.67168200	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05077	I–265 at Westport Road	U-verse	38.29701800	-85.54724900	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05078	I–265 at LaGrange Road	56K	38.28645026	-85.51530361	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05079	I–265 at Old Henry Road	DSL	38.26974046	-85.50056219	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05080	I–265 at Shelbyville Road	U-verse	38.24168100	-85.50381800	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05081	I–265 at Taylorsville Road	DSL	38.18928600	-85.50915700	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05082	I–265 at Bardstown Road	DSL	38.14180900	-85.58402600	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05083	I–265 at Smyrna Parkway	DSL	38.11777000	-85.64376000	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05084	I–265 at Preston Hwy	DSL	38.10972500	-85.67597900	Honeywell
D5	CCTV05085	KY 841 at New Cut Rd	DSL	38.12061800	-85.77934600	Honeywell
D5	ORBP-CC01	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC02	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC03	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC04	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC05	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC06	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD

D5	ORBP-CC07	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC08	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC09	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC10	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC11	DC Section 1 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC12	DC Section 2 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC13	DC Section 2 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC48	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC49	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC50	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC51	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC52	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC53	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC54	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC55	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC56	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC57	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC58	DC Section 1 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC59	US 22 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC60	US 22 Verification	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC61	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC62	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC63	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC64	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC65	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC66	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC67	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD

D5	ORBP-CC68	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC69	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC70	DC Section 2 Traffic Fixed	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC71	DC Section 2 Multi-Use	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC72	DC Section 2 Multi-Use	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD

^{*}Note: Several camera and other assets will be removed by ORBP. Numbering may change when replacements are brought online.

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D5	DMS05001	I–64 (WB) at Clark Station	Daktronics	23.60	West Bound
D5	DMS05002	I–71 (SB) at Zorn	Daktronics	2.70	South Bound
D5	DMS05003	I–64 (WB) at Oxmoor Farm Rd.	Daktronics	13.60	West Bound
D5	DMS05004	I-64 (WB) at Grinstead	Daktronics	7.20	West Bound
D5	DMS05005	I-64 (EB) at 22nd Street	Daktronics	3.00	East Bound
D5	DMS05006	I–65 (NB) at St. Catherine	Daktronics	134.50	North Bound
D5	DMS05010	I–264 (WB) at Bells Lane	Daktronics	3.80	East Bound
D5	DMS05011	I–65 (NB) at Fern Valley	Daktronics	128.70	North Bound
D5	DMS05012	I–264 (WB) at Newburg Rd.	Daktronics	14.20	West Bound
D5	DMS05013	I–264 (EB) at Southern Pkwy	Daktronics	9.80	East Bound
D5	DMS05015	I–264E at Virginia Ave.fDumesnil St.	Daktronics	2.80	West Bound
D5	DMS05016	I–71 (SB) South, North of I–265	Daktronics	11.00	South Bound
D5	DMS05017	I–71 (SB) South of I–265	Daktronics	8.00	South Bound
D5	DMS05018	I–71 (NB) North of I–265	Daktronics	11.80	North Bound
D5	DMS05019	I–265 (SB) South of Old Henry Rd	Daktronics	27.90	South Bound
D5	DMS05020	I–265 (EB) East of I–64	Daktronics	24.30	East Bound
D5	DMS05021	I–265 (WB) West of Smyrna Pkwy	Daktronics	12.80	West Bound
D5	DMS05022	Hwy 841 (EB) East of National Turnpike	Daktronics	6.80	East Bound
D5	ORBP-DMS01	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-DMS02	East End Crossing Section 4	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-DMS03	East End Crossing Section 4	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-DMS04	East End Crossing Section 4	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-DMS05	East End Crossing Section 4	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-DMS06	East End Crossing Tunnel	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-DMS07	East End Crossing Tunnel	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS01	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS02	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS03	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS04	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS05	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS06	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS07	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS08	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS09	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS10	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS11	Downtown Crossing Section 1	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS12	US 22	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-ADMS13	US 22	TBD	TBD	TBD

District	ID No.	County	Roadway	Direction	MP	Device
D5	WBR001	056	I-65	N	132.30	RTMS
D5	WBR002	056	I-65	N	136.00	RTMS
D5	WBR004	056	I-65	N	135.50	RTMS
D5	WBR006	056	I-65	N	134.70	RTMS
D5	WBR007	056	I-65	S	134.30	RTMS
D5	WBR008	056	I-65	N	134.30	RTMS
D5	WBR009	056	I-65	S	133.90	RTMS
D5	WBR011	056	I-65	S	133.60	RTMS
D5	WBR012	056	I-65	N	133.60	RTMS
D5	WBR013	056	I-65	S	132.70	RTMS
D5	WBR014	056	I-65	N	132.70	RTMS
D5	WBR015	056	I-65	S	132.00	RTMS
D5	WBR016	056	I-65	N	132.00	RTMS
D5	WBR017	056	I-65	S	131.60	RTMS
D5	WBR018	056	I-65	N	131.60	RTMS
D5	WBR019	056	I-65	N	131.20	RTMS
D5	WBR020	056	I-65	S	131.30	RTMS
D5	WBR021	056	I-65	S	136.50	RTMS
D5	WBR022	056	I-65	N	136.50	RTMS
D5	WBR025	056	I-64	W	4.90	RTMS
D5	WBR026	056	I-64	E	4.90	RTMS
D5	WBR027	056	I-64	E	4.90	RTMS
D5	WBR028	056	I-64	E	6.10	RTMS
D5	WBR030	056	I-64	E	6.50	RTMS
D5	WBR031	056	I-64	W	6.80	RTMS
D5	WBR032	056	I-64	E	7.20	RTMS
D5	WBR033	056	I-64	W	7.20	RTMS
D5	WBR034	056	I-64	E	8.00	RTMS
D5	WBR035	056	I-64	W	8.00	RTMS
D5	WBR036	056	I-71	N	0.40	RTMS
D5	WBR038	056	I-71	N	1.10	RTMS
D5	WBR039	056	I-71	N	0.90	RTMS
D5	WBR040	056	I-71	N	1.90	RTMS
D5	WBR041	056	I-71	S	1.90	RTMS
D5	WBR042	056	I-71	N	3.40	RTMS
D5	WBR043	056	I-71	S	3.40	RTMS

D5	WBR044	056	I-71	N	4.00	RTMS
D5	WBR045	056	I-71	S	4.00	RTMS
D5	WBR046	056	I-71	N	2.60	RTMS
D5	WBR047	056	I-71	S	2.70	RTMS
D5	WBR048	056	I-64	W	8.70	RTMS
D5	WBR049	056	I-64	W	10.20	RTMS
D5	WBR050	056	I-64	E	11.10	RTMS
D5	WBR051	056	I-64	W	13.30	RTMS
D5	WBR052	056	I-64	W	16.90	RTMS
D5	WBR053	056	I-64	W	18.60	RTMS
D5	WBR054	056	I-64	E	19.40	RTMS
D5	WBR055	056	I-64	W	21.20	RTMS
D5	WBR056	056	I-264	E	6.40	RTMS
D5	WBR057	056	I-264	W	5.90	RTMS
D5	WBR058	056	I-264	E	5.10	RTMS
D5	WBR059	056	I-264	E	4.00	RTMS
D5	WBR060	056	I-264	E	2.60	RTMS
D5	WBR061	056	I-264	E	1.50	RTMS
D5	WBR062	056	I-264	E	0.60	RTMS
D5	WBR063	056	I-264	E	1.10	RTMS
D5	WBR064	056	I-64	E	1.10	RTMS

^{*}Note: Several camera and other assets will be removed by ORBP. Numbering may change when replacements are brought online.

EAST END CROSSING TUNNEL INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D5	ORBP-CC14	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC15	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC16	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC17	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC18	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC19	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC20	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC21	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC22	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC23	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC24	EEC Section 4 Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC25	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC26	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC27	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC28	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC29	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC30	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC31	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC32	EEC Tunnel Traffic PTZ	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC33	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC34	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC35	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC36	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC37	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC38	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD

D5	ORBP-CC39	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC40	DC Section 2 Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC41	Tunnel Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC42	Tunnel Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC43	Tunnel Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC44	Tunnel Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC45	Tunnel Bldg. Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC46	Tunnel Bldg. Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-CC47	Tunnel Bldg. Security	TBD	TBD	TBD	TBD

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D5	ORBP-DMS06	East End Crossing Tunnel	TBD	TBD	TBD
D5	ORBP-DMS07	East End Crossing Tunnel	TBD	TBD	TBD

DISTRICT 6 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D6	CCTV06001	I–71 South Bound MP66.9 Gallatin County	Cellular	38.77882	-84.76662	Axis 232D
D6	CCTV06002	Boone County I71 MP73.9 SB	Cellular	38.85081	-84.66546	Axis 232D
D6	23	I–71fI–75 NB on lower deck of Brent Spence Bridge	Fiber	39.086807	-84.522802	ViconfAxis
D6	24	I-71fI-75 at 12th St	Fiber	39.075875	-84.519002	ViconfAxis
D6	25	I–71fI–75 at Cut In the Hill	Fiber	39.063989	-84.521823	ViconfAxis
D6	26	I–71fI–75 at Kyles Ln	Fiber	39.058768	-84.53853	ViconfAxis
D6	27	I–71fl–75 at Dixie Highway	Fiber	39.049795	-84.55076	ViconfAxis
D6	28	I–71fl–75 at N of Buttermilk Pike	Fiber	39.05104	-84.56677	ViconfAxis
D6	29	I–71fI–75 at Buttermilk Pike	Fiber	39.04637	-84.57494	ViconfAxis
D6	30	I–71fI–75 at I–275	Fiber	39.034738	-84.599595	ViconfAxis
D6	31	I–71fI–75 at Donaldson Hwy	Fiber	39.025552	-84.61368	ViconfAxis
D6	32	I–71fI–75 at Turfway Rd	Fiber	39.012981	-84.630385	ViconfAxis
D6	33	I-71fI-75 at Burlington Pike	Fiber	39.001403	-84.647441	ViconfAxis
D6	34	I-71fl-75 at US-42	Fiber	38.985104	-84.641853	ViconfAxis
D6	51	I–275 at Mineola Pike	Cellular	39.055124	-84.626084	Axis P5532-E
D6	52	I–275 East of KY 212 fAirport	Cellular	39.06969	-84.64961	Axis P5532-E
D6	53	I–275 at Petersburg Rd Overpass	Cellular	39.073604	-84.670966	Axis P5532-E
D6	54	I–275 at East of KY 237	Cellular	39.078321	-84.69048	ViconfAxis
D6	55	I–275 at KY 237	Cellular	39.081008	-84.708573	ViconfAxis
D6	56	I–275 at West of KY 237 at DMS57	Cellular	39.084599	-84.74395	ViconfAxis
D6	57	I-275 at KY 8fPetersburg Exit	Cellular	39.087752	-84.793139	ViconfAxis
D6	58	I–275 at East of Indiana Line	Cellular	39.093536	-84.81325	Axis P5532-E

D6	59	I–71fl–75 at Mt. Zion Rd	Cellular	38.957018	-84.634987	ViconfAxis
D6	60	I–71fI–75 at Richwood Rd	Cellular	38.917513	-84.629099	Axis P5532-E
D6	61	I–71fI–75 Split	Cellular	38.87687	-84.62551	ViconfAxis
D6	102	I-471 S of US-27 (on DMS 48)	Cellular	39.062522	-84.468169	ViconfAxis
D6	103	I–471 at Grand Ave (on DMS 52)	Cellular	39.081178	-84.471483	ViconfAxis
D6	129	I–275 at Dixie Highway (Taylor Mill)	Cellular	39.026161	-84.572846	ViconfAxis
D6	130	I–275 at Taylor Mill Pk. (KY 16)	Cellular	39.02147	-84.511388	ViconfAxis
D6	131	I-275 at I-471	Cellular	39.04603	-84.458049	ViconfAxis
D6	132	I–275 at US–27 Overpass (On Bridge)	Cellular	39.049601	-84.446461	ViconfAxis

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D6	DMS0601	Boone County I71 MP73.9 SB	Daktronics Sidemount	73.9	South Bound
D6	39 (ODOT 404)	I–71f75 North of Kyles Lane	Daktronics Overhead	189.2	North Bound
D6	42 (ODOT 426)	I–275 East of Turfway Rd. underpass	Daktronics Overhead	1	East Bound
D6	43 (ODOT 403)	I–71f75 North of TurfwayRoad	Daktronics Overhead	183.8	North Bound
D6	45 (ODOT 435)	I–275 East of Turkey Foot Road	Daktronics Overhead	81.2	West Bound
D6	47 (ODOT 434)	I–275 East of Johns Hill Road	Daktronics Overhead	76.2	East Bound
D6	48 (ODOT 437)	I-471 South of US-27	Daktronics Overhead	1.4	South Bound
D6	49 (ODOT 436)	I-471 South of I-275	Daktronics Overhead	0	North Bound
D6	50 (ODOT 432)	I–275 East of Alexandria Pike Overpass	Daktronics Overhead	73.9	West Bound
D6	51 (ODOT 433)	I–275 under Alexandria Pike Overpass	Daktronics Overhead	74.1	East Bound
D6	52 (ODOT 438)	I–471 at Grand Ave.	Daktronics Overhead	2.9	North Bound
D6	57 (ODOT 427)	I–275 West of Hebron Exit (at CCTV56)	Daktronics Overhead	8.7	East Bound
D6	59 (ODOT 402)	I–71f75 at Mt. Zion Road	Daktronics Overhead	178	South Bound
D6	60 (ODOT 401)	I-71f75 North of RichwoodRoad	Daktronics Overhead	175.8	North Bound

DISTRICT 7 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D7	CCTV07001	Clays Ferry Bridge Northbound Above Deck	T1	37.88594886	-84.34189885	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07002	Clays Ferry Bridge North side Below Deck	T1	37.88594886	-84.34189885	Axis 232D
D7	CCTV07003	Clays Ferry Bridge North side Below Deck	T1	37.88594886	-84.34189885	Axis P5532-E
D7	CCTV07004	Clays Ferry Bridge South side Below Deck	T1	37.88215635	-84.33738068	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07005	Clays Ferry Bridge South side Below Deck	T1	37.88215635	-84.33738068	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07006	Clays Ferry Bridge Southbound Above Deck	T1	37.88215635	-84.33738068	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07007	175 at Ironworks	Cellular	38.21599712	-84.53421593	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07008	175 @ 164 Northbound Split	Encom Radio T1	38.11558345	-84.52599897	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07009	I75 @ Newtown Pike	T1	38.09973780	-84.48499202	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07010	175 @ Russell Cave	Encom Radio T1	38.08931215	-84.46665376	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07011	175 @ Paris Pike	Encom Radiof T1	38.08130245	-84.45943459	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07012	175 @ Bryan Station	Proxim Radio T1	38.06685259	-84.44585859	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07013	175 @ Southern Split	Proxim Radio T1	38.05380651	-84.43057134	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07014	175 @ Winchester Road	T1	38.03938819	-84.41975265	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07015	I75 @ Man O War	Proxim Radio T1	38.02204272	-84.41113069	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07016	Athens Boonesboro	Cellular	37.96282597	-84.38963413	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07017	175 Scott County SB	Cellular	38.25076988	-84.54859390	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07018	175 Scott County NB	Cellular	38.24800522	-84.54684108	ViconfAxis

						Q7401
D7	CCTV07019	I64 Clark County	T1	38.01657731	-84.15908887	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07020	I64 MP63 in Woodford Co	Cellular	38.16196099	-84.72278595	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07021	175 Madison County SB	Proxim Radio f Cellular	37.82501009	-84.32433843	Vicon/Axis Q7401
D7	CCTV07022	I75 Madison County NB	Cellular	37.81512596	-84.32301476	Vicon/Axis Q7401

District	ID	Site Name:	Manufacturer	MP	Road Direction
D7	DMS07001	NB I–75 Scott County MP 127.24	Daktronics Overhead	127.74	North Bound
D7	DMS07002	SBI-75 Scott County MP 127.24	Daktronics Overhead	127.74	South Bound
D7	DMS07003	I–64 Clark County MP 97.00 VMS 3	Daktronics Overhead	97	West Bound
D7	DMS07004	I 64 Woodford MP 63	Daktronics Overhead	64	East Bound
D7	DMS07005	I–75 Madison County NB MP 93.341	Daktronics Overhead	93.34	North Bound
D7	DMS07006	I–75 Madison County SB MP 93.341	Daktronics Overhead	93.34	South Bound

DISTRICT 9 INFORMATION

Distric	:t	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D9		CCTV09001	I-64 Westbound @ KY801 (Farmers) MP132.9	Cellular	38.18365	-83.55605	Axis P5532-E

DISTRICT 10 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D10	CCTV10001	Mountain Parkway Northbound MP36.4	Cellular	37.78989	-83.64847	Axis P5532-E

DISTRICT 12 INFORMATION

District	Camera	Site Name:	Transport	Lat:	Lon:	Controller
D12	CCTV12001	US119 @ Pine Mountain US119 Southbound MP12.3	Cellular	37.07569	-82.81018	Axis P5532-E
D12	CCTV12002	US23 @ US119 (Jenkins) US23 Southbound MP1.1	Cellular	37.15974	-82.64903	Axis P5532-E

RWIS STATION INFORMATION

	Station			
Dist	#	County	Mile Point	Location
1	010	Ballard	US-51 MP 4.2	US-51 at Willow Slough Bridge (Wickliffe)
1	011	Livingston	US-60 MP 12.6	US-60 at Cumberland River (Smithland)
1	012	Livingston	I-24 MP 33.8	I–24 at Cumberland River
1	013	Hickman	Julian Carroll MP 5.1	Julian Carroll at KY 94 overpass (Water Valley)
1	014	Crittenden	KY-641 MP 5.4	KY-641 at MP 5 (Marion)
2	020	Henderson	US-41 MP 17.3	US-60 at US-41 (Henderson)
2	021	Christian	I-24 MP 88.8	I–24 at KY–115 (Oak Grove)
2	022	Hancock	US-60 MP13.7	US-60 at MP 13 (Hawesville)
2	023	Union	KY-56 MP 11.3	KY 56 near Spring Grove
2	024	Hopkins	Wendell Ford MP 38.7	Wendell Ford at Edward Breathitt
2	025	Webster	Edward Breathitt MP 60.2	Edward Breathitt near KY370
2	026	Muhlenberg	Wendell Ford MP 57.1	Wendell Ford at Central City
2	027	Ohio	Wendell Ford MP 75.6	Wendell Ford at Beaver Dam Service Area
2	028	Daviess	William Natcher MP 71.9	William Natcher at US-60 Bypass
3	030	Simpson	I-65 MP2.8	I–65 at MP 2 (Franklin)
3	031	Warren	I-65 MP 36.6	I–65 at MP 37 Smiths Grove
4	040	Hardin	I-65 MP 91.8	I–65 at Western KY Pkwy (Elizabethtown)
4	041	Nelson	BG Pky MP 18.5	Bluegrass Parkway at Bardstown
4	043	Grayson	Wendell Ford MP 107.6	Wendell Ford at Leitchfield
5	050	Jefferson	I-64 MP 5.2	I-64 at River Road (Downtown Louisville)

5	052	Franklin	I-64 MP 55.5	I–64 WB at KY River Bridge (Frankfort)
5	053	Shelby	I-64 MP 24.2	I–64 EB at MP 25 (old rest area)
5	054	Jefferson	I-264 MP 9.1	I–264 at Taylor Blvd
5	051	Jefferson	Westport Rd(KY–1447) MP 6.7	I–265 at Westport Road (East Louisville)
6	060	Kenton	KY-17 MP 18.6	I-275 at KY-17 (Covington)
6	061	Boone	I-275 MP 12.8	I–275 at MP 13
6	062	Gallatin	I-71 MP 66.3	I–71 at MP 66 (Verona)
6	063	Grant	I-75 MP 154.1	I–75 at KY 36 (Williamstown)
6	064	Boone	I-75 MP 178.1	I–75 at MP 178
7	070	Madison	I-75 MP 97.9	I–75 NB at Clays Ferry Bridge
7	071	Fayette	I-75 MP 110.8	I–75 South at I–64 (Lexington)
8	080	Pulaski	KY-90 MP 9.5	US-27 at KY-90 (Burnside)
9	090	Mason	US-62 MP 23.3	US-62 at Maysville Bridge
9	091	Rowan	I–64 MP 132.9	I-64 at KY-801 (Farmers)
10	100	Wolfe	Mountain Pky MP 36.4	Mountain Parkway at MP 36 (Slade)
11	110	Laurel	I-75 MP 28.9	I–75 SB at US–25 (Corbin)
11	111	Whitley	I-75 MP 1.8	I–75 NB at KY Welcome Center
11	112	Laurel	I-75 MP 40.7	I–75 NB at KY–80 (London)
12	120	Letcher	US-119 MP 12.4	US–119 at Pine Mountain (Whitesburg)

APPENDIX B

Semi-Annual PM, at a minimum, shall consist of the following items (note: items will vary depending upon the District):

Equipment Cabinets

- Inspect cables, wire terminations and connectors.
- € Vacuum the bottom of the cabinet out.
- £ Check the cabinet lighting and replace as necessary.
- £ Check the cabinet fan and thermostat for proper operation.
- Replace the cabinet air filters if so equipped.
- Inspect the rodent/bird/pest control measures of the cabinet and replace or install as necessary.
- Inspect the door seals for water tightness.
- Insure proper operation of the locks including the key hole cover and replace if necessary.
- £ Check all lightning, surge and ground protection.
- Inspect the physical conditions of all electrical disconnects and transformers for damage or deterioration and repair as necessary.
- Inspect electrical terminations on disconnects and transformers and tighten as necessary.

Inductive Loops and Piezo Sensors (selected locations)

- Verify all lanes are reporting.
- Perform a visual inspection of seals from outside edge of shoulder.
- £ Check continuity and insulation resistance with a megohmmeter.
- Check all connections and tighten as necessary.

Dynamic Message Signs (DMS)

- Run diagnostics. Verify there aren't any component failures within the DMS.
- Inspect circuit boards, cables, fans and connectors.
- f Inspect DMS enclosure for water tightness.
- £ Check DMS grounding surge lightning protection.
- Inspect the sign facing, catwalk and truss attachments for fatigue, loose bolts, rust, etc. that could potentially compromise the integrity of the sign and support structure. Potential problems will be reported immediately.
- For the DMS trusses, inspect the rodent/bird/pest control measures and replace as necessary. This includes inspecting the mortar and/or hardware cloth, if any, between the concrete leg foundation and the metal foot of the truss. If this wasn't done, hardware cloth with 1/4" spacing should be applied securely to fill in the gap.

- Check that all hand hole covers are in place and tight. Also check that all conduit elbows have a lid securely attached.
- If the DMS enclosure was provided with a fire extinguisher, it should be recertified or replaced to the current year.

CCTV

- ∉ Verify proper operation of the camera heater.
- £ Check CCTV surge and lightning protections.
- Verify electrolytic ground rod ventilation caps are located, cleared of debris and marked to be clearly visible.
- € Check CCTV camera cables for connection/tightness.
- Clean CCTV camera dome.
- Inspecting the mortar and for hardware cloth, if any, between the concrete foundation and the metal foot of the camera pole. If this wasn't done, hardware cloth with "x" spacing should be applied securely to fill in the gap.
- Check that all hand hole covers are in place and tight. Also check that all conduit elbows have a lid securely attached.
- Check any radio, antenna or conduit that may be mounted to the pole is securely fastened.

Service Poles

- Inspect ground, surge and lightning protections and repair as required in accordance with all prevailing codes.
- Inspect for loose bolts, wires and connection and repair as necessary.
- f If present, inspect all rodent/bird/pest control measures and replace as necessary.

Pull Boxes / Access Panels

- f Inspect and replace rodent screens on drains as necessary.
- Replace or install new pest control if not present.
- Inspect all lids for proper closure and replace repair as necessary.

Fiber Tests (once per year)

- Run fiber signal testing to ensure proper operating levels.
- Clean fiber connectors when needed

Wireless Communications Tests (once per year)

- f Test wireless radio antennas for signal strength.
- # Alignment/Optimization adjustments of wireless radio antennas as necessary.

Flashing HAR Signs

- Verify proper operation of all components.
- Inspect for loose bolts, wires and connection and repair as necessary.

f Test batteries and repair replace as necessary.

Wide Beam Radar (WBR) - Operational locations only

- Verify proper operation of all components.
- Verify configuration settings.
- Verify accuracy of reported data is within tolerances.
- Inspect for loose bolts, wires and connection and repair as necessary.
- ∉ Check for any new obstructions.

Portable Dynamic Message Signs

- Verify proper operation of all components.
- Inspect for loose bolts, wires and connection and repair as necessary.
- f Test batteries and repair replace as necessary.

Wizards

- Verify proper operation of all components.
- Inspect for loose bolts, wires and connection and repair as necessary.
- f Test batteries and repair replace as necessary.

SWZT

- Verify proper operation of all electronic components (CCTV, LED panels, etc.) and note issues
- Inspect for loose bolts, wires, connections and note issues.
- f Test batteries, solar panel and charging system and note issues.
- Correct repair very minor issues and pass along remaining issues to the Ohio River Bridges Project Design-Build contractor.
- Visually check tires, hitch, locks, covers, brakes, brake lights and note issues.

RWIS Stations

(once in the Spring and once in the Fall)

- Met One Rain Gage During each site visit, check for and remove any debris, insects, sediment, etc. from the collection funnel, debris screens, or tipping bucket assembly. Verify the tipping bucket assembly moves freely, and that the datalogger records 0.01 in. for each tip. In addition, the following calibration check is recommended once every 12 months:
 - a. Remove the housing assembly from the base by loosening the three screws and lifting upward on the housing.

- b. Check bubble level to verify sensor is level.
- c. Pour water through the inner funnel to wet the two bucket surfaces. Using a graduated cylinder, slowly pour the appropriate amount of water(refer to table below) through the inner funnel to the tipping bucket, which should tip once. Repeat for the other bucket. If both buckets tip when filled with the appropriate amount of water (refer to the table below), the sensor is properly calibrated and no additional adjustments is needed. If either bucket fails to tip, recalibrate as follows:
- 1. Release the lock nuts on the cup adjustments.
- 2. Move the adjustment screws down to a position that would place the bucket far out of calibration.
- 3. Pour the appropriate amount of water (see table below) into the inner funnel (i.e. 18.52 ml for 0.01 inches of rain f tip):

Conversion Factors:

Tip to in³: 113.04 in² (catch orifice area) x increment in inches.

in³ to ml: multiply by 16.3881. ml to ounces: multiply by 0.03382.

- 4. Turn the cup adjustment screw, opposite the full bucket, up until the bucket assembly tips. Tighten the lock nut.
- 5. Repeat steps 3 and 4 for the opposite side.
- 6. Repeat steps 1–5 to ensure proper calibration.
- 7. Reinstall the housing assembly and tighten the three screws.

TABLE Volume of Water								
for Recalibration								
Tip Increment	in³	ml	ounces					
0.01 in	1.13	18.52	0.63					

05102-L R.M. Young Wind Monitor – Every month do a visualf audio inspection of the anemometer at low wind speeds. Verify that the propeller and wind vane bearing rotate freely. Inspect the sensor for physical damage.

Replace the anemometer bearings when they become noisy, or the wind speed threshold increases above the acceptable level. The condition of the bearings can be checked with a paper clip as described in the R.M. Young manual.

The potentiometer has a life expectancy of fifty million revolutions. As it becomes worn, the element can produce noisy signals or become non–linear. Replace the potentiometer when the noise or non–linearity becomes unacceptable.

Contact Campbell Scientific for a Return Materials Authorization (RMA) number at (435) 753–2342.

HMP45C Temperature and Relative Humidity Probe – The HMP45C Probe requires minimal maintenance. Check monthly to make sure the radiation shield is free from debris. The black screen at the end of the sun sensor should also be checked for contaminates.

The filter can be rinsed gently in distilled water. If necessary, the chip can be removed and rinsed as well. Do not scratch the chip while cleaning.

Recalibrate the HMP45C annually. Obtain an RMA number before returning the HMP45C to Campbell Scientific for recalibration.

LI200X Pyranometer – On a monthly basis the level of the pyranometer should be checked. Any dust on the sensor head should be removed. The debris can be removed with a blast of compressed air or with a soft bristle, camel hair brush. Check that the drain hole next to the surface of the sensor is free of debris.

CAUTION: Handle the sensor carefully when cleaning. Be careful not to scratch the surface of the sensor.

Recalibrate the LI200X every two years. Obtain an RMA number before returning the LI200X to Campbell Scientific for recalibration.

- Model 237 Leaf Wetness Sensor After the initial calibration, the sensor should be washed with alcohol to remove possible contaminants on a monthly basis.
- Model 107 Temperature Probes The 107 Probe requires no maintenance for buried applications.

Additional Maintenance/Repair Requirements for District 6

Preventive maintenance and repairs of ITS components in District 6 are subject to the following:

- 1. SpeedInfo will continue to maintain the speed devices along the freeways. SpeedInfo reports directly to the Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT).
- 2. ODOT will continue to be responsible for all of the communications components.
- 3. The Manager will continue to provide preventive maintenance of the cabinets and their contents.
- 4. The Manager/KYTC would be responsible for any electrical repairs that require inspection.
- 5. The Manager will be responsible for preliminary troubleshooting. ODOT will make every attempt to diagnose problems from the office via remote communications to devices as a filter. If ODOT knows what the problem is or ODOT believes the problem is something that can be handled by the Manager, ODOT will write up a work order and send it to KYTC to have the Manager make the necessary repairs. If ODOT believes the problem is something they will have to fix, they will notify KYTC and the Manager and fix it accordingly.
- 6. If the Manager is out working on devices and one or more will be taken out of service, the Manager must notify ODOT's TMC using a phone number to be supplied by ODOT.
- 7. The Manager will handle major repairs.
- 8. ODOT will include KYTC and the Manager on all maintenance-related emails.
- For parts, ODOT may have some on hand depending upon the item to be repaired. If KYTC/Manager is handling the repair, KYTC/Manager would be responsible for restoring the site including equipment replacement repair.
- 10. ODOT will provide KYTC with a list of all current locations being maintained as well as the status of all equipment at those locations.
- 11. The Manager shall continue responsibility for semi–annual preventive maintenance of the Dynamic Message Signs (DMS).
- 12. KYTC/manager would be responsible for repairing any major fiber breaks. ODOT has some equipment that might be available to be borrowed, but it is not all in good shape and new tools may need to be acquired.
- 13. The Manager will respond to all equipment locating requests within the ARTIMIS boundary in Northern Kentucky. ODOT has locating equipment that can be borrowed, if needed.
- 14. Loops are not covered as they are no longer used maintained.
- 15. Side–fire radar units are not covered as they are no longer used.